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LETTER FROM THE CHAIR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
The Trustees’ Report and accompanying financial statements contained in this document cover the
financial year 2018/19. This was the third year of the Higher Education Statistics Agency Limited (HESA)
2016-2021 Strategy and in 2019/20 a refreshed strategy for 2019-22 was approved by the Board. In
August 2019 HESA’s role as the Designated Data Body for England became fully effective. The report
demonstrates the wide range of activity undertaken by HESA during the course of a year in which both
HESA and the UK HE sector have undergone significant change.
In response to evolving challenges and drivers for change which are outlined in the future plans section
of the report, the Board has developed a strategy for 2019-2022. The new Strategy and the Annual
Operating Plan put in place to support its delivery will be driven forward in 2019/20.
Over the past year HESA has continued to deliver its core data collections and services efficiently and
effectively.
Engagement took place with the sector throughout 2018/19, and in 2019 HESA formally consulted on its
proposed approach to meeting the requirements of the Higher Education Research Act (HERA), of HESA
as the Designated Data Body and the requirements of the Devolved Administrations to ensure HESA
continued to perform its UK-wide role effectively.
Following this we have agreed with Office for Students (OfS) a Memorandum of Understanding for how
we will work together. This includes a clear set of KPIs, the delivery of which is monitored by the Board.
HESA has also engaged with the sector to prepare it for implementation of the new subscription
arrangements with invoices in the new form issued in early 2020.
To support our aims in ensuring we are delivering services for our subscribers in the most cost-effective
ways possible, we have integrated our Data Analytics team and its work into the Jisc Group to create a new
larger Data Analytics function. This will provide enhanced data analytics for the higher education sector,
underpinned by trusted HESA data, and is reflective of the Bell Review recommendations around greater
collaboration between sector bodies. From September 2019 the following products and services are now
being provided by the Jisc Group:
•

Tailored Data Sets

•

Data Consultancy

•

Progress through HE

•

HE Impact: Local Level

•

Heidi Plus

•

Workforce Explorer

•

Heidi Plus Training

We have also continued discussions through the M5 Group, to investigate ways of generating more
operational efficiencies, and we will continue to explore these opportunities over the coming years.
Key areas of work over the last year have included steering Graduate Outcomes through its first year of
operation and strengthening plans to ensure we are able to successfully deliver and continuing to work
with our stakeholders and the sector in respect of the Data Futures programme.
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We continue to work with Statutory Customers and sector bodies such as Jisc, UUK, GuildHE, IHE,
UCISA, ARC, AHUA, HESPA, SROC, as well as higher education providers and their software suppliers
to ensure the data futures programme meets their requirements.
HESA has delivered on the commitment in its open data strategy to publish as much information we hold
as open data as possible, and we will continue to evolve our analytical tools and services for providers
in the coming year.
It remains our overarching commitment to collect and assure high quality data for our customers across
higher education and statutory and funding bodies. We have worked hard to maintain our high
standards whilst going through the process to become the Designated Data Body for England and we
will be driving through our key programmes of work and focusing on our core delivery functions in
2019/20 against our new strategy, which is focused around the following key strategic aims:
•

Deliver our statutory and non-statutory data collection activities

•

Deliver our major transformation programmes

•

Ensure our data and expertise are open and accessible

•

Build a flexible, innovative and resilient organisation

PAUL CLARK
Chief Executive

PROFESSOR SIR CHRIS HUSBANDS
Chair
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REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The Trustees, who are also Directors of the Company for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006,
submit their annual report and audited financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2019. The
Trustees have adopted the provisions of the Charities Statement of Recommended Practice 2015
(SORP 2015), FRS 102 and have complied with the Companies Act 2006 and the Charities Act 2011 in
preparing the annual report and financial statements.
The Trustees and officers of the charity, address, legal and administrative details are given on pages 5 to
6. The Trustees are also approving the Strategic Report in their capacity as Directors.
STRUCTURE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
HESA is a charitable company limited by guarantee and was incorporated on 23 November 1992. It has
one wholly owned trading subsidiary, HESA Services Limited, which was incorporated on 27 September
1995.
The Agency’s two founding Members are two of the representative bodies for the higher education
sector, namely Universities UK and GuildHE. The guarantee of each Member is limited to £1. The
governing documents are the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.
The management of the company and the group is the responsibility of the Trustees who are appointed in
accordance with its Articles of Association.
The Higher Education and Research Act 2017 established a new role of Designated body for English
higher education information. HESA submitted an expression of interest to be designated as this body
in 2017 and was announced as the Designated Data Body in February 2018, with this becoming fully
effective from August 2019. HESA has made changes to its Articles of Association to ensure that it
reflects the requirements of designation in respect of representation of the sector. The Articles of
Association were last amended and approved on 18 October 2018. Discussions took place with HESA
members UUK and GuildHE, to agree the terms of these changes.
CHARITABLE OBJECT
HESA’s charitable object is to advance education for the public benefit. The following is a summary of
the powers of the Agency set out in its Memorandum of Association, in furtherance of this object:
•

to provide a statistical service to those concerned with HE in the UK;

•

to collect, analyse and publish data for higher education institutions in the UK, to provide such
data to higher education institutions in the UK, each of the HE funding councils and education
departments in the UK and such other persons as the Agency think fit;

•

to publish and distribute material that the Agency thinks is desirable for the promotion of its
objects;

•

to undertake research in the HE system and to publish the results of such research; and

•

to organise meetings or other events to promote its objects.
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APPOINTMENT OF TRUSTEES
The HESA Board seeks to ensure that appointments to the Board provide expertise and experience well
suited to the governance of the Agency, bearing in mind the particular responsibilities of the Agency and
the nature of the services it delivers. The Board seeks through co-option to enhance further the range
and balance of experience and expertise available within it. The Board of Directors are appointed by the
Members and Directors.
In 2018 HESA updated its Articles of Association, in consultation with its members GuildHE and UUK,
to better reflect the requirements of the Higher Education Research Act (HERA), its new role as
Designated Data Body for England, and the changing Higher Education landscape. These were
formalised in October 2018.
Under the HESA Articles appointments are for three years. Directors are able to serve up to two
consecutive terms and, in exceptional circumstances, the Board may determine that Directors may serve
further terms of office. Directors in office on the date immediately before the ‘effective date’ of the new
Articles, are deemed to be newly appointed. The Directors have agreed a process for staggering the
retirement of these Trustees on the first, second and third anniversaries of the Effective date to provide
a staggered process.
During the course of the 2018/19 financial year recruitment to Trustee roles took place in line with the
new Articles.
Between October 2018 and June 2019 three existing Trustees stepped down and replacements were
identified and joined the Board early in the new financial year 2019/20 for two of these, open recruitment
will take place in 2019/20 for the third which is for a student, or a person able to represent a body which
represents the interests of students.
A further Trustee stepped down in December 2019 and a replacement is expected to be appointed early
in the new year.
Board constitution (Articles approved 2018)
The Board consists of:
•

up to four persons nominated by UUK

•

up to one person nominated by GuildHE

•

the CEO, by virtue of his/her employment by the Charity in that capacity;

•

up to one person appointed by the Board (having consulted with GuildHE, Independent
Higher
Education, and such other HE provider representative groups as the Board considers appropriate)
to better enable the Board to reflect the diverse types of HE provider who subscribe to the Charity
and who will in the opinion of the Board have a comprehensive knowledge and understanding of
the selected type of HE provider from which the Board wishes to recruit;

•

up to one person appointed by the Board who is considered by the Board to be engaged wholly or
mainly in the governance or management of a further education college which provides higher
education and who will (in the opinion of the Board having consulted with the Association of
Colleges and the UK Council of Colleges or their successor bodies) have a comprehensive
knowledge and understanding of such colleges;

•

up to six persons appointed by the Board (to be referred to as “co-opted directors”); and
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•

up to one person appointed by the Board being a student or a representative of a body which
represents the interests of students.

HESA has Trustee Appointment and Induction Procedures in place which must be complied with for all
Trustee appointments and this is overseen by the Nominations and Governance Committee.
Appointments by Universities UK and GuildHE are made following advertisement of the appointment in
their newsletters and interviews of interested candidates. Co-opted appointments are made by the Board
on the recommendation of HESA’s Nomination and Governance Committee. For recruiting new co-opted
Trustees, HESA produces a Trustees Information Pack (including clear role profiles) advertises the
vacancies and operates an interview process. Where appropriate, HESA may use an independent
specialist agency to assist with this process. Due diligence is completed on all potential Trustees to
ensure that they are Fit and Proper Persons, including searches of the Register of Disqualified Directors,
The Insolvency Service Register for recently disqualified directors, and the Individual Insolvency Register.
Reviews of potential conflicts of interest are also carried out.
Following appointment to the Board, new Trustees attend an induction meeting with the Chief Executive
and senior staff and are provided with details on HESA’s organisational structure and how it operates.
They are given a Trustee Handbook that includes important relevant documents, including the
Memorandum of Understanding and Articles of Association, an Organisation chart, guidance for Trustees
from the Charity Commission and Companies House, details of committees, calendar of meetings and
the latest Consolidated Financial Statements. The Trustees Handbook is also accessible online and is
updated as necessary by HESA.
During the course of the year HESA has put a membership application process in place, developed with
its member bodies UUK and GuildHE which provides clarity on eligibility criteria that prospective new
members must meet to be admitted as members. This also includes information on the consultation
process that will be followed in gathering views from existing members.
There have been no applications for membership in this reporting period.
DECISION MAKING
The HESA Board has overall responsibility for HESA’s assets and property. Its principal responsibilities
are to:
•

Critique and determine the mission and vision of HESA, the overall strategy and key performance
indicators.

•

Ensure that HESA pursues its charitable object and agreed mission.

•

Ensure the establishment and monitoring of systems of control and accountability.

•

Set HESA’s budget to ensure the financial stability, probity and sustainability of HESA.

•

Ensure that HESA complies with its constitutional documents, charity law, company law and any
other relevant legislation or regulations.

•

Monitor and evaluate HESA’s performance against agreed targets.

In the previous report it was noted work was planned with HESA’s member bodies to develop a
membership agreement to provide clarity on roles and responsibilities of both HESA and its members;
referencing the member application process (see above), duty to act in the best interest of HESA, matters
reserved for the members, confidentiality, and the dispute resolution process. It was agreed by the Board

9

HESA

this should be held back pending approval of the new Strategy and this will now be taken forward in
2019/20.
It had been intended to undertake work to update the Articles for the subsidiary company HESA Services
Limited (HSL) and to put in place a new framework agreement between HESA and HSL. This was also
held back pending discussions on the future strategic direction and work will be taken forward in 2019/20.
To ensure compliance with GDPR, and pending approval of the wider Framework Agreement, a GDPR
compliant, data processor agreement has been entered into between HESA and HSL. This reflects the
current nature of the relationship: i.e. that HSL is Data Processor for HESA.
The HESA Board usually meets three times a year, with additional meetings held as necessary to support
decision making, and for strategic discussion and board development.
The Articles of Association for HESA outline matters reserved for the Board in article 105 as follows:
105.1

the approval of the annual estimates of income and expenditure;

105.2

the approval of the annual operating plan and the key objectives of the Charity;

105.3

the approval of the annual accounts and reports of the Charity;

105.4

ensuring the solvency of the Charity and the safeguarding of its assets; and

105.5

ensuring the continued charitable status of the Charity.

The Articles were previously amended to dispense with the holding of annual general meetings
recognising that HESA’s members and a representative of the higher education funding bodies attend
HESA’s board meetings as Observers. A code of conduct for Observers to the Board is in place and is
regularly reviewed.
The Board has established three sub-committees to which it delegates responsibility for particular
activities. Each committee has clear terms of reference that are regularly reviewed. These are:
•

An Audit Committee to assist the Boards of HESA and its wholly owned subsidiary HESA
Services Limited in discharging their responsibilities for the financial statements, monitoring the
effectiveness of internal controls, providing assurance on the effectiveness of their risk
management arrangements, ensuring effective internal and external audit arrangements are in
place and adopting best practice in corporate governance.

•

A Remuneration Committee, which is chaired by the Chair of the Board. The key responsibilities
of the Remuneration Committee are to determine the salaries of the Chief Executive and the
Company Secretary, to review the salaries of the senior staff set by the Chief Executive in
accordance with HESA’s pay policy and to keep under review the appropriateness and relevance
of HESA’s pay policy. Further responsibilities of the Committee include recommending to the Board
the overall salary uplifts of the Agency and in ensuring staff remuneration benefits and the gender
pay gap are kept under review. In setting and reviewing salaries and keeping under review the
appropriateness and relevance of HESA’s pay policy, HESA benchmarks against higher education
providers and other sector agencies’ pay awards. HESA also uses specialist pay policy consultants
where necessary.
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•

A Nominations and Governance Committee whose responsibilities include making
recommendations to the HESA Board in relation to the appointment of Board members, ensuring
an appropriate mix of skills and expertise is represented on the Boards of HESA and HESA
Services Limited, and monitoring and managing conflicts of interest.

The Board approved an updated Scheme of Delegation in 2019 and this will continue to be refined to fit
business needs. Governance and decision-making structures were reviewed and updated in 2018/19
and continue to be refined to fit business need. Reviews are undertaken applying the Charity
Governance Code and considering additional practices HESA should implement to strengthen decision
making, reporting, performance and assurance processes across the business as well as the need to
reflect the requirements of the business post-divestment of the Data Analytics team to Jisc and
governance arrangements required specifically around Data Futures.
The Board has delegated the day to day management of HESA to the Chief Executive, who is supported
in this by the Executive Management Group.
HESA ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
During 2018/19 HESA embedded its new governance, business processes and operating model model
developed in 2017/18 to support the organisation to deliver its ambitions and to enable it to effectively
meet its obligations as Designated Data Body.
During the reporting period HESA had in place two lines of business, HESA Enterprise (Data Analytics)
and HESA Statutory Services, supported by Core Service Groups for Data and Innovation, Corporate
Services, Technology, Legal and Compliance, and Corporate Affairs. During the financial year the Board
took the decision to integrate Data Analytics into Jisc and preparations for this were taken forward, with
the transfer of services and staff becoming effective in September 2019.
HESA has continued to reflect and respond to operational and business requirements and, with the
divestment of Data Analytics, these continue to be refined to meet the needs of the business. A new
Strategy for 2019/2022 was approved at the end of the financial year, focused around delivery of core
statutory services and as a result there will be a further review of the operating model in 2019/2020.
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STRATEGIC REPORT
As a result of the complex environment in which HESA is operating and the scale of change underway
both within HESA and the wider HE economy, the Board recognised in 2018 there was a need to review
and revise HESA’s strategy. This work continued over 2018/19 as we developed the building blocks
required to operate as the Designated Data Body and deliver a sustainable business, and a refreshed
strategy for 2019/20 was approved at the June Board with an Annual Operating Plan to support its
delivery agreed in the new financial year. Delivery of these is now well underway.
Further detail on our Annual Operating Plan and next steps are provided in the Plans for the Future
section at the end of the report.

Updates provided in this Trustees report are for the financial year 2018/19 during which the previous
strategy was in place.
VISION

HESA’s aim is to be the analytical powerhouse for the UK HE sector, and the trusted source of
national HE statistics and public information. We seek to provide flexible, efficient, high-quality data,
information, and analytical services to meet user needs, to support better decision-making in higher
education, to promote public trust and confidence, and to enhance the competitive strength of the
UK HE sector.
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
HESA has four strategic aims in support of its vision:

HESA’s Corporate Strategy for the period 2016 to 2021 is published in full at www.hesa.ac.uk/strategy
and reported on below under Performance and Achievements.
The HESA Corporate strategy is designed to upgrade and modernise our data collection systems and
processes to enable us to deliver greater efficiency and effectiveness to the HE data infrastructure.
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Our aims are to provide flexible, efficient, high quality data, information and analytical insight to meet user
needs, to support better decision-making in higher education, to promote public trust and confidence,
and to enhance the competitive strength of the UK HE sector.
The four strategic aims of the 2016 to 2021 strategy can be summarised as follows:
1.

UPGRADE THE UK HE DATA INFRASTRUCTURE
•
•
•
•
•

2.

INCREASE THE USEFULNESS OF THE DATA WE COLLECT
•
•
•
•
•

3.

Make as much of our core data as possible available as open data.
Improve data capability in the UK HE sector.
Develop common data specifications that can meet the needs of the widest group of users,
while minimising burden.
Regularly review our data collections to ensure proportionality and usefulness.
Link HESA data with that of other HE Sector and public sector data collectors and suppliers.

ENHANCE INSIGHT THROUGH ANALYSIS AND DISSEMINATION
•
•
•
•

4.

Rationalise our data collection systems and processes, and move to in-year data collection
through the Data Futures Programme.
Establish sector-owned mechanisms for collective decision-making and scrutiny of UK HE
data, with a mandate to reduce burden.
Improve the speed, timeliness, and efficiency of our data collections and deliveries.
Move our technology platform and data to the Cloud.
Plan for the future of data collection and dissemination beyond 2019/20.

Continuously develop and improve our hosted analytics service, Heidi Plus.
Develop new, bespoke products and services which meet the needs of users.
Provide ‘policy-ready’ data by ensuring that our data is accessible and available to policymakers and decision-makers when they need it, in the form they need it.
Improve understanding, confidence and public trust in UK higher education through
commentary, analysis and visualisation.

OPERATE EFFICIENTLY
•
•
•
•
•
•

Review our organisational structure and functioning with the aim of increasing efficiency.
Carry out due diligence on options to increase collaborations and partnerships, and to share
services with other organisations.
Reduce internal bureaucracy.
Further diversify our income streams, to minimise the cost to the sector of HESA’s core
services.
Develop a sustainable long-term cost base and investment plan.
Recruit and retain staff with the skills to deliver our strategic aims.
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DELIVERING PUBLIC BENEFIT
The Trustees have regard to the Charity Commission Guidance on Public Benefit in discharging their
responsibilities. A copy of the Guidance is provided to Trustees on appointment, is re-circulated annually,
and is contained within the Trustees Handbook.
As outlined earlier, HESA’s charitable object is the advancement of education, primarily by providing a
statistical and data service. In accordance with the Agency’s object, powers and mission statement the
aims of the Agency are intended to benefit the following users of higher education data:
•

A broad range of members of the public including current and prospective students and their
advisors, researchers and journalists;

•

higher education providers;

•

UK Government (including government departments, devolved governments and agencies);

•

UK higher education funding bodies; and

•

bodies/entities with a duty or interest in the monitoring, maintaining and promotion of equality of
opportunity.

HESA collects, processes, assures, analyses, and disseminates data on all aspects of higher education
activity throughout the United Kingdom. In delivering this service HESA has regard to the needs of its
beneficiaries (i.e. data providers and data recipients). HESA has broad representation on its Board,
including individuals holding senior positions in HE and FE. This was strengthened through revisions to
its Articles of Association in 2018. It also hosts a number of stakeholder groups and consults widely to
identify the needs of its beneficiaries. Topics consulted on during the financial year included the
Consultation on how it would meet UK wide requirements post HERA; Subscription agreement; Student
record specification consultations, including extensive and wide-ranging Data Futures specifications and
other Student record specification activity – such as General Medical Council (GMC) and Higher
Education-Business in Community Interaction (HE-BCI).
In addition to providing data to HESA’s Public Purpose and Statutory Customers, HESA makes data
available through publications, bespoke data enquiries, online interactive management information to
HE providers (through the Heidi Plus service), and by providing appropriate open data on the charity’s
website. Data is also made available through a linked data process under which HESA Data linked to the
National Pupil Database and Individual Learner Record is supplied to end-users in the majority through
the Office for National Statistic’s Secure Research Service.
HESA keeps under review any potential harm that could occur in delivering the benefits provided to its
beneficiaries. To date no detriment has been identified as occurring as a result of the Agency’s activities.
The Agency is very aware of the need to process data in compliance with the law, and during the previous
year put in place a plan for preparing for complying with the General Data Protection Regulation and the
Data Protection Act 2018. Successful audits have taken place to test HESA’s compliance with this. HESA
makes every effort to ensure its activities do not infringe individuals’ data protection rights, including
taking external legal advice where required.
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Our activities are regularly reviewed in the context of data protection law, particularly in light of the growing
demand from government bodies for the use of HESA data.
HESA Services Limited, which is not a charity, undertook training, provision of data services, and bespoke
information analysis on behalf of HESA over the past year, for third parties, such as researchers,
journalists and employers. The distributable profits of this company are paid to HESA annually under a
deed of covenant and are used to limit increases in subscriptions. The gift aid payment is calculated as
the "taxable profits" of HESA Services Limited for such accounting period (being the amount of its profits
on which Corporation Tax falls to be borne but without deducting any gift aid payments to Higher
Education Statistics Agency or, if lower, the realised profits available for distribution calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 for that accounting period).
HESA has delivered on the commitment in its open data strategy to publish as much information we hold
as open data as possible. HE Student Data was first released as open data in February 2018 and all
statistical first releases (SFRs). UK performance indicators (UKPIs), Higher Education Business and
Community Interaction (HE-BCI), and Estates collections have also been released in the new interactive
open format during 2018/19, including:
•

First release of alternative providers’ student enrolment and qualifications data for 2017/18

•

First release of staff data for 2017/18 covering demographic and contract characteristics of staff at
UK higher education providers

•

Annual first release of student enrolment and qualifications data for 2017/18

The Student Open Data landing page has been viewed over 88,000 times (unique page views) during the
2018/19 period. Analytics are showing high levels of engagement with the interactive tables (far higher
than the number of downloads of our previous non-interactive releases).
HESA contributes to the ‘Discover Uni’ website, formerly the ‘UNISTATS’ website, for the benefit of
prospective students and students through the collection, preparation and supply of source data. HESA
also publishes the entire UNISTATS and KIS dataset as a free of charge open data resource available to
all.
HESA data is also available via the http://data.gov.uk website.
In the following sections, there is further detail about how the public benefit principles are met by the
Agency. The Trustees have been advised on the public benefit requirement and in preparing this Report,
the Trustees have had regard to the guidance that the Charity Commission has published on the public
benefit requirement under the Charities Act 2011.
PERFORMANCE AND ACHIEVEMENTS
HESA’s performance and achievements for 2018/19 are reported on below against the four strategic aims
of the HESA’s Corporate Strategy for the period 2016 to 2021.
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Each year HESA publishes an annual Impact Report. A copy of the latest report, published in April 2019
can be found at https://www.hesa.ac.uk/about/impact
This section reports on HESA’s performance and achievements during the financial year and to date.

AIM 1: UPGRADE THE UK HE DATA INFRASTRUCTURE
DELIVERY OF HESA’S CURRENT DATA COLLECTIONS
DELIVERY OF HESA’S DATA COLLECTIONS (AUGUST 2018 TO JULY 2019)
In the period August 2018 to July 2019 and since the previous Chair and Chief Executive’s Report, HESA
has delivered the following annual data collections:
•
2017/18 Student Record
•
2017/18 AP Student Record
•
2017/18 Aggregate Offshore Record
•
2017/18 Staff Record
•
2017/18 Finance Statistics Return (FSR)
•
2017/18 Higher Education Business and Community Interaction (HE-BCI) Survey
•
2017/18 Estates Management Record
•
2018/19 Provider Profile Record
•
2018/19 In-year Initial Teacher Training (ITT) web service
•
2018/19 Unistats
•
2019/20 Unistats
The following collections were open for providers during the reporting time to submit data and were
delivered to schedule:
•
2018/19 Student Record
•
2018/19 AP Student Record
•
2018/19 Staff Record
•
2018/19 Aggregate Offshore Record
•
2019/20 In-year Initial Teacher Training (ITT) web service
•
2017/18 Graduate Outcomes1
The following collections are open as fixed databases:
•
2014/15 Student Record
•
2015/16 Student Record
•
2016/17 Student Record
•
2017/18 Student Record
•
2016/17 AP Student Record
•
2017/18 AP Student Record
•
2017/18 Staff Record
•
2016/17 Finance Statistics Return (FSR)
•
2017/18 Finance Statistics Return (FSR)

1

the survey concluded as planned, at the time of writing specifications for delivery were still being finalised and
final data delivery is forecast 4 weeks behind planned date.
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Impact:
In delivering this current schedule of collections HESA has successfully provided information to statutory
customers for policy/and or funding purposes, published both Official and National Statistics products and
provided information for general use.
To ensure that collections are completed to time and to the agreed quality, HESA has supported 500 higher
education and further education providers through over 27,083 email conversations, liaising with 4,549
different individuals in submitting data and enabling higher education providers to fulfil their statutory
reporting requirements in an efficient and cost effective manner.
This has resulted in the processing of more than 132 million records, arriving at complete and quality
checked data concerning over 3.7 million students and graduates from across 294 higher education
providers. For the first year of the Graduate Outcomes we have processed 2.2 million contact details from
providers.
RATIONALISE OUR DATA COLLECTION SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES
Since its inception, the ambition of the Data Futures programme has always been to improve the way we
collect, process and disseminate data in line with an evolving, transforming HE sector. During the year
HESA announced it was undertaking a further design phase. Alongside this design phase, and following
consultation with key stakeholders, HESA decided to deliver the next phase of the programme using an
alternative delivery approach. Updates on the Data Futures Programme are provided via our website on
the specification overview page.
ESTABLISH SECTOR-OWNED MECHANISMS FOR COLLECTIVE DECISION-MAKING AND
SCRUTINY OF UK HE DATA, WITH A MANDATE TO REDUCE BURDEN
During 2019 HESA convened a number of meetings of the Data Landscape Steering Group (DLSG) to
consider its objectives and terms of reference in light of the significant changes in the HE sector since its
inception, especially in England, with a view to ensuring it remains fit for purpose. As a result, proposals
were put forward to replace DLSG with a distributed architecture which assigns key DLSG objectives to
other bodies and groups for whom the objectives are closely aligned with their strategic interests and
levels of authority and it was agreed the DLSG should be dissolved. Work has taken place to update
existing artefacts and create new ones, including management guides for the standard data model and
the HeCOS subject classification.
HESA will engage with the other bodies to obtain their acceptance to take ownership of the objectives
and HESA will retain ownership of the objectives relating to data standards and will reformulate the former
DLSG Advisory Panel to assist with this activity.
Impact:
DLSG objectives promote best practice in the collection and handling of data, as well as developing
strategies to minimise the burden of data collection and improve the quality, timeliness and accessibility
of information. Since inception, the group has overseen the implementation of the HECOS framework, and
HESA has consulted on a burden assessment and data governance model to benefit the whole HE sector.
The HESA-led approach for implementing the code of practice has enabled HESA to ensure that in
considering any request for the collection of data from the HE sector, that burden on the sector is properly
considered; and also provides a mechanism for HESA to ensure that the requirements of GDPR are
considered when changes to the data being collected by HESA are being proposed. The proposed future
direction for the work which was undertaken by DLSG will ensure that the programme of work is more
effectively resourced and driven forward.
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IMPROVE THE SPEED, TIMELINESS, AND EFFICIENCY OF OUR DATA COLLECTIONS AND
DELIVERIES
Agile development practices continue to be used to deliver HESA’s data collection and strategic projects.
With continual improvement to working practices and procedures, such as the build and release pipeline.
Impact:
In addition to improvements made to our quality assurance and data delivery processes to enable HESA
and its stakeholders to work more effectively, working practices have continued to evolve to increase
input to the sprint reviews with a broader audience and greater interaction. Teams restructuring ensured
the ability to meet changes in demand on the collections portfolio, whilst embedding processes that eased
the transfer of staff between teams.
The functional changes to IDS (HESA identity system) provide improved support for compliance related
activities. The general improvements to reporting now enables more effective review of roles.
MOVE OUR TECHNOLOGY PLATFORM AND DATA TO THE CLOUD
Cloud provision continued to be evaluated on a case by case basis, with IDS being moved to Azure during
the 18/19 year.
Graduate Outcomes has been implemented as a predominantly cloud-based system, utilising Azure for
in-house developments and cloud-based services to provide off the shelf services such as sending emails
and checking validity of phone numbers.
The Unistats collection now uses cloud-based components to control the release of data – a successful
implementation of a hybrid approach to a small part of the collection.
Impact:
Moving IDS to Azure increased confidence around performance and availability, also providing the
capability to scale the service to meet changes in demand.
Graduate Outcomes utilised the scaling capability of the Azure cloud with an increase in capacity between
May & July and a further increase in December 2019 to accommodate greater load on the service. The
service is expected to scale up and down throughout the operating year to meet anticipated demand.
The Unistats change has provided finer-grained controls to support the timely release of data.
PLAN FOR THE FUTURE OF DATA COLLECTION AND DISSEMINATION BEYOND 2019/20
HESA has undertaken initial work to develop acquisition of third-party data as a third major route of data
ingestion to complement data collection and surveys. A business process for ingestion is in
development, and a Research Strategy which supports this route (among other things) has been
approved.
In addition, the following collection improvements have been identified:
•

A review of the Aggregate offshore record has commenced

•

A review of the HE-BCI survey has commenced
18

HESA

•

Changes to the Staff Record identified as a requirement for the Research Excellence Framework
(REF) have mainly been implemented

•

Changes to the Finance Record have been implemented, and further changes required as a result
of changing OfS requirements have also been implemented

•

Discussions have commenced about the future requirements for the Estates Management record

In terms of improvements to dissemination, work is underway to prepare for the release of official
statistics and open data on Graduate Outcomes. This is a large and more technical task than in the
past, requiring a greater degree of statistical processing to calibrate data.
Progress and next steps with regard to Data Futures is provided in the strategic projects section.
Impact:
The publication of staff and finance data for the first time as open data in 2019 marked the completion of
transition of HESA’s statistical publications into open data format, as specified within the HESA open data
strategy 2017-2021. We have also developed plans to release policy briefings based on novel analysis
of third-party and HESA data, with the first of these, on the financial returns to a degree, published in
October 2019.

AIM 2: INCREASE THE USEFULNESS OF THE DATA WE
COLLECT
MAKE AS MUCH OF OUR CORE DATA AS POSSIBLE AVAILABLE AS OPEN DATA
HESA remains mindful of the need to find the right balance between confidentiality, disclosure control,
and making the data we publish as open, useful, and meaningful as possible. We have continued to
deliver on our commitment to publish as much of the information we hold as open data as we can by
2021. The HESA Open Data Strategy published in January 2017, and all data due to be published to date
has been delivered with the only publication left to publish in Open Data format being Graduate Outcomes
in 2020.
Over the last year HE Student data was released as open data and all statistical first releases (SFRs),
UK performance indicators (UKPI’s), Higher Education Business and Community Interaction (HE-BCI),
and Estates collections have also been released in the new interactive open format during 2018.
We are currently planning content of our next student data releases and in doing so are reviewing the
feedback we have received from users over the previous year with a view to adding/scheduling additional
breakdowns and tables to the open data set where appropriate to further meet the needs of our users.
In July 2019, a ‘discovery’ phase of work took place, defining the needs and requirements for an Open
Data Discovery Tool. Such a tool is planned to be an interactive self-service web application to enable
users to define their own data sets which would be extracted from the HESA data collections and delivered
with disclosure control applied dynamically. This will allow for greater flexibility and utility of data access
than currently is possible by the Open Data published on our website. The ‘discovery’ phase was helpful
but did highlight the challenges there are in finding an appropriate approach to Statistical Disclosure
Control that balances the disclosure risk against the utility of any data to be published and this is an area
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we will be continuing to explore before the tool is built. The privacy of individuals whose data are utilised
within HESA’s statistical outputs is of paramount importance.
Good progress has been made in planning for the first Graduate Outcomes data releases due to be
published in April 2020. The previous annual Statistical Bulletin published from the Destination of Leavers
from Higher Education survey was a designated National Statistics output. Discussions are underway
with the Office for Statistics Regulation to ensure that the equivalent bulletin on Graduate Outcomes are
assessed at the appropriate time and confirmed as compliant with the Code of Practice for Statistics.
Following support expressed by the sector for the continued production of UK Performance Indicators in
the HESA sector consultation, work has resumed in preparing for the next publication in early 2020. A
new governance structure will be required given the changes in the English HE sector in particular. This
has been the subject of some initial discussions with the Office for Students and the next step is to
formulate a formal proposal and to commence establishing the necessary governance group.
Impact:
Google analytics of our open data webpages allow us to gain insight in relation to the engagement of
users with the data we release. The main student data landing page received over 88,000 unique page
views in 2018/19. The next most popular open data pages were on graduates (approx. 16,300 page
views), staff (approx. 16,300 page views) and performance indicators (approx. 9,900 page views).
Monitoring of social media has also provided evidence of increased usage and citing of open data within
various discussions on higher education policy and practice.
IMPROVE DATA CAPABILITY IN THE UK HE SECTOR
Through the HESA Training team we have continued to support the sector through live seminars and
eLearning, delivering 34 seminars and 39 bespoke visits to providers across the UK. To complement the
live delivery programme and to broaden our portfolio of training options for providers we have designed
a wealth of online resources to support providers in HESA data collection.
Impact:
During this period we have engaged with over 2300 delegates, ranging from HE Providers, Software
Houses, Statutory Customers, and Sector Agencies, in order to improve skills.
We continue to promote the importance of Data Governance, Capability and Data Analytics through our
ongoing collaborations with key sector bodies such as SROC and Jisc.
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DEVELOP COMMON DATA SPECIFICATIONS THAT CAN MEET THE NEEDS OF THE WIDEST
GROUP OF USERS, WHILE MINIMISING BURDEN
Consultation on the new student specification for Data Futures continued throughout the year. In addition,
HESA undertook to make changes to the existing student collection specification to reflect feedback from
Statutory Customers and providers.
Full Time Equivalent (FTE) was launched in late 2018 in response to the requirements of Statutory
Customers. Outcomes were provided and published on the HESA website in March 2019.
Impact:
HESA’s ongoing engagement with statutory customers and providers ensures the HESA data
specifications meet the needs of the sector. HESA delivered draft specifications for use in Data Futures
Alpha and Beta test phases and continued to develop these specifications to support the delivery of the
programme and meet stakeholder’s needs.
REGULARLY REVIEW OUR DATA COLLECTIONS TO ENSURE PROPORTIONALITY AND
USEFULNESS
During the year HESA concluded and published the notifications of changes from our annual reviews and
updates of the following data collections:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Staff record 2018/19
Student 2019/20
(Data Futures) specification consultation
Estates Management Record (EMR)
AP Student record 2018/19
Student record 2018/19
Unistats record 2018/19
Initial Teacher Training record 2018/19

In addition, the work on delivering the Graduate Outcomes survey has delivered a revised collection
specification for providers submitting graduate contact details.
During the year HESA started to use the burden assessment methodology defined by the Data Futures
Collection Governance project, and the published outcomes from the most recent Data Futures Student
record specification consultation trialed this approach.
In addition to an ongoing regular programme of annual updates to our records to ensure they remain
current; in February 2019 we launched a major review of the HE-BCI record. We have published the
review remit and are preparing a fact-finding consultation. We are currently in the process of recruiting a
review steering group.
We have also launched a review of the collection of transnational HE student data, which is looking to
extend the Aggregate Offshore Record in the first instance and replace it with an individualised record in
the longer term.
HESA also continued to deliver changes request by stakeholders (Statutory Customers and providers)
via its BCI process.
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Impact:
Maintenance of all collections was undertaken to ensure they collect data that was relevant, as well as
responding to 134 change requests received during the period. Across all collections the following volume
of external change requests was managed:
Status
•
Active (open)
•
Closed (rejected)
•
Proposed (open draft)
•
Resolved (actioned)
Total

31
53
4
46
134

LINK HESA DATA WITH THAT OF OTHER HE SECTOR AND PUBLIC SECTOR DATA COLLECTORS
AND SUPPLIERS
During the year HESA continued to explore opportunities to link HESA data to other data sources to
improve the insight that can be gained and generate increased potential uses for data collected.
Further work was undertaken in collaboration with UCAS to link admissions records to HESA student
records to generate a combined data set that will support better understanding of access and participation.
UCAS are undertaking research on this data set with the aim of creating new progression statistics in due
course.
HESA continued to collaborate with the Department for Education and the Education and Skills Funding
Agency in operating a linked data service for researchers, which provides access to detailed data resulting
of linking the National Pupil Database, Individualised Learner Record (FE) and the HESA Student Record.
Discussions were also initiated on a wider plan to establish a regular inflow of data from the Individualised
Learner Record to HESA to be linked to the HESA Student Record to enable HESA to more effectively
fulfil its role as Designated Data Body for England, as expressed within the Office for Students Data
Strategy 2018-2021. Work on this is ongoing at the time of writing.
HESA prepared the annual data set for the Higher Education Access Tracker (HEAT) initiative, which
involves linking of HESA student Record with data on outreach activities delivered by HE providers. This
initiative provides resources and solutions to HE providers in the UK to enable them to evaluate the
efficacy of their outreach and widening participation activities.
Looking forward, HESA’s emerging research strategy will provide a focus for work on exploring and
investigating a range of other data sources with which HESA data could be linked to generate new insights
and information resources for the benefit of HESA’s users and stakeholders.
Impact:
Improvements in data linkage are being pursued across the public sector in the UK and are recognized
as a way of generating impactful new evidence at relatively low cost through more effective leveraging of
the value of existing data assets. This new evidence is invaluable in development of policies, processes
and structures that benefit society and improve the lives and opportunities of citizens.
The linked National Pupil Database, Individualised Learner record data and HESA Student Record data
service continues to provide a valued service to the academic research community. Through this service
they are able to source a very rich set of data on progressions of students from school to university and
undertake key research. This improves understanding of important issues in education and provides
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evidence to support development of policy and practice in areas such as social mobility and equality of
opportunity.
Further impacts generated by the initiatives to link HESA and UCAS data and to establish regular flows
of data on FE study to HESA will emerge as these are developed and the resulting combined data
resources are deployed in a range of applications.

AIM 3: ENHANCE INSIGHT THROUGH ANALYSIS AND
DISSEMINATION
CONTINUOUSLY DEVELOP AND IMPROVE OUR HOSTED ANALYTICS SERVICE, HEIDI PLUS
During the year HESA continued with the transition of Heidi Plus data sources to the HESA Data
warehouse. This will enable more effective management of the data infrastructure in the system and
faster updates to be delivered to users.
In the 2018/19 reporting period the following key areas of work took place, (following the transfer of the
Data Analytics team and services to the Jisc Group in September 2019 these are now being taken forward
within the Jisc Group):
•
•
•

Progression through HE: University and workplace outcomes’ report previously known as the Pupil
Progression Report was launched in May 2019
Development of new Interactive Insights products with Jisc
HESA and Jisc have worked together to streamline product development processes to enable
products to be taken to market quicker, more efficiently and with customer engagement at every
stage

Impact:
The integration of the Data Analytics service into Jisc, with the Jisc Group acting as HESA’s processor for
Heidi Plus, will provide the sector with an improved and more wide-ranging service in the future.
DEVELOP NEW, BESPOKE PRODUCTS AND SERVICES WHICH MEET THE NEEDS OF USERS
New product development was largely paused whilst the organisational design was underway. However,
through that process a product development team was created, with an expectation to bring new products
and services to market.
Work continued this year on new Data Insight Products including ‘the Progression through HE: University
and workplace outcomes’ report (previously known as the Pupil Progression Report). This is a service
which has transferred to Jisc.
HESA continued to develop bespoke consultancy services which were positively received and prior to the
transfer of the Data Analytics team to Jisc work had begun to identify new markets which will now be
taken forward by Jisc.
During the year we added the Office for National Statistics (ONS) as a receiver of ‘Data Collection as a
service’.
Work on delivering the existing portfolio of data products and services continued with a very wide range
of customers deriving significant value from these. The net promotor score derived from customer
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feedback on the Tailored Datasets Service remained very strong and this provides a strong foundation
for onward development of this service which is now being delivered by the Jisc Group on behalf of HESA.
Impact:
Developing new products enables HESA to diversify its income to minimise the costs to the sector of
HESA’s core services. These products also deliver valuable information and insight to their users across
a range of industrial sectors and for a range of applications, with users within the UK higher education
sector forming a significant segment of the customer base.
PROVIDE ‘POLICY-READY’ DATA BY ENSURING THAT OUR DATA IS ACCESSIBLE AND
AVAILABLE TO POLICY- MAKERS AND DECISION-MAKERS WHEN THEY NEED IT, IN THE FORM
THEY NEED IT
This objective has been supported by the ongoing delivery of the Open Data Strategy, in particular the
release of our largest data set to date, the HE Student Data in February 2018, as well as the wide variety
of routes through which HESA disseminates data and information. Key work this year has included the
bespoke research project with the former Office for Fair Access (offa). The final report from the research
supplied bespoke analysis of both HESA records and the primary survey, with interpretation of the findings
also included, provides evidence-based output ready to utilise in policy making.
Work is underway to prepare for the first release of official statistics and open data on Graduate
Outcomes. This is a larger and more technical task than in the past, requiring a greater degree of
statistical processing to investigate potential sources of error and bias, and to consider when data needs
to be calibrated or weighted if required. We also have new data from the survey to draw upon in our
publications, including the Graduate voice questions and the Subjective wellbeing questions. The
publication of new data on Graduate Outcomes will mark the completion of the first open data strategy.
Impact:
HESA’s open data outputs have been accessed and utilised extensively during 2018/19. See usage
statistics listed under Aim 2. Monitoring of the press and media and social media have indicated a high
number of references to HESA published open data in articles and discussions about a range of topical
policy areas in UK higher education.
IMPROVE UNDERSTANDING, CONFIDENCE AND PUBLIC TRUST IN UK HIGHER EDUCATION
THROUGH COMMENTARY, ANALYSIS AND VISUALISATION
During the past year HESA has further developed its statistical publications, particularly as these have
transitioned to open data format. Interactivity and flexibility for users have been key objectives and in
pursuit of these we have refined and extended the range of data visualisations, introduced a wider range
of cross-tabulations with user-selectable filters and dimensions, and enhanced commentary to be more
accessible to users and provide more contextual information. In addition, we have acted upon detailed
feedback on format and structure arising from a compliance review undertaken by the Office for Statistics
Regulation to improve our users’ experience. We have received positive feedback from users on these
changes both directly and via social media.
Impact:
Improvements in accessibility, flexibility and interactivity in our statistical products have resulted in a surge
in the number of onward uses and references made, as measured through press and social media
monitoring. User feedback has been very supportive of the changes, expressed directly and via social
media posts. Analytics on the numbers of users accessing the statistical information summarized under
Aim 2 also provides evidence of extensive usage.
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AIM 4: OPERATE EFFICIENTLY
CARRY OUT DUE DILIGENCE ON OPTIONS TO INCREASE COLLABORATIONS AND
PARTNERSHIPS, AND TO SHARE SERVICES WITH OTHER ORGANISATIONS
A Framework Agreement for the M5 collaboration, has been in place for a number of years between
HESA, QAA and Jisc which sets out the legal terms and governance arrangements through which these
organisations will work together collaboratively; sharing knowledge and resources to enable all parties
to deliver services for our respective stakeholders in a cost-effective way.
This is in addition to the work linking data with UCAS, and the transition of HESA’s Data Analytics team
and services into Jisc both previously mentioned. Over the coming year HESA will continue to explore
opportunities to continue to work in close collaboration with these and other sector agencies, for the
benefit of the charity and of the sector.
HESA, UCAS, Jisc and HECSU Prospects have been working in collaboration over the past year to
develop a prototype of a new information tool for prospective students and their advisors and current
students to enable them to understand typical pathways through study and into different occupations.
This has involved pooling of skills, expertise and data across the four organisations. The organisations
are now considering how to develop the prototype into new tools and services for the target user group
and are continuing to collaborate on this next phase of work.
Impact:
HESA is continuing to benefit from working with Jisc in terms of procurement support and access to IT
service desk support and is enabling us to collaborate to share data, insight and expertise.
Through the work with UCAS a more comprehensive picture is being built using statistics on entry to,
and progress through higher education.
REDUCE INTERNAL BUREAUCRACY
During the year we have created a Portfolio and Performance Board, taking out another committee to
reduce duplication. This has focused on strengthening our focus on improving business systems and
processes, decision making, project and change management and information flows. This process will
continue to be refined in 2020. Recent key developments have included the creation of a Resource RAG
report to enable clarity on pressures within the business and development of a business roadmap
outlining key areas of work including activity to support delivery of the Annual Operating Plan.
Impact:
Improved systems and processes support the organisation to be more agile, streamlined and effective
and provides clarity on decision making.
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DEVELOP A SUSTAINABLE LONG-TERM COST BASE AND INVESTMENT PLAN
HESA is committed to keeping subscription costs as low as possible whilst meeting its resource and
investment levels required to effectively and efficiently fulfil its statutory role.
Impact:
HESA communicated detailed arrangements for the new subscription invoicing towards the end of the
2019 calendar year in readiness for invoicing in January 2020. This incorporates proportionate cost
allocation across a 12-month subscription period invoiced in six monthly periods.
RECRUIT AND RETAIN THE STAFF WITH THE SKILLS TO DELIVER OUR STRATEGIC AIMS
Significant improvements were made to HESA’s hiring process, supported by Laenus, an Education
recruitment agency.
HESA implemented changes to its pay policy in 2018-19, which enabled employees to nominate
colleagues for small financial awards and recognition, and uplifted the salaries of key roles to meet
benchmark data. HESA invested in the development of a Mental Health Strategy, appointed of Mental
Health First Aiders and began contracting with a new Employee Assistance Programme supplier.
Impact:
The change to the recruitment approach reduced HESA’s time to hire in difficult Technology roles from
11 weeks to under five weeks. HESA’s voluntary staff turnover remained static at 16% in 2018-2019.
This should be considered against a UK SME average turnover of 18% in 2017 and 19.4% in 2018.
HESA anticipates a further increase in voluntary turnover in 2019-2020 and the reduction in overall
headcount as it implements its new strategy.
HESA’s efforts in respect of its Mental Health Strategy have been well received by staff and commended
in WonkHE as demonstrating HESA as an employer that is delivering support to its employees.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
A risk policy and process are in place to rate, monitor and escalate risks; including those for key
strategic projects. This is integrated into HESA’s management processes, and the risk register is
reviewed in detail at the Portfolio and Performance Board, EMG and the Audit Committee; with a
report provided to both the HESA and HESA Services Limited Boards after each Audit Committee
highlighting key risks and changes. In addition, all Board and Committee papers are linked to the
relevant strategic risks. The Audit Committee identifies areas of HESA’s operations that may benefit
from internal audit assessment (either by HESA’s internal auditors or other specialists), reviews
findings and recommendations and reports these to the HESA Board. HESA is also accredited under
quality standard ISO 27001.
Through the risk management and audit processes, the Trustees are satisfied that the major risks to
which the Agency is exposed have been reviewed, and systems or procedures have been
established to manage those risks and mitigate exposure.
At the end of the financial year the principal risks and uncertainties that the Trustees considered
HESA and its subsidiary HESA Services Limited were facing were interlinked, and related to risks
related to delivery of strategic projects, data protection, resources and medium term financial to
longer term sustainability. Mitigation plans are in place for all risks. During the course of the year the
following policies were updated:
•
•
•
•

Anti-bribery
Anti-Fraud
Whistleblowing and
Risk Management

DATA PROTECTION & INFORMATION SECURITY
HESA and HESA Services continue to operate in a fast-moving information security threat landscape
and one in which there is understandably significant focus on Data Protection. It is therefore vital
that HESA is able to actively demonstrate that it takes information security and data protection
seriously and complies with statutory requirements and best practice.
Over the last year Data Protection and Information Security have remained a key area of focus for
the Audit Committee.
The Information Security and Data Protection Management Group has continued to meet regularly
throughout the year under the joint leadership of the Chief Technology Officer and the Data Protection
Officer/Director of Compliance. This group provides assurance to the Executive Management Group
and thereafter to the Audit Committee and Board on actions being taken to ensure data protection
and information security compliance, and identifies additional actions required.
The Data Protection Audit in 2019 provided ‘substantial assurance’ in respect of HESA’s GDPR
compliance and HESA continues to strive towards achieving the highest standards of compliance in
providing assurance to the sector around its management of data.
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During the course of the year key work has included:
•

The development of a more granular Information Asset Register

•

The development of a new GDPR maturity assessment tool linked to 12 key assurance
requirements for HESA’s functions, and monitored through our Audit committee.

•

Significant work against the 10 Steps to Cyber Security which has been used to measure
improvements.

•

Access to additional and improved monitoring tools which has meant that HESA is better
sighted and able to identify, assess, and deflect cyber-attacks.

•

Updated information security policies to reflect current ways of working and best practice with
further updates planned.

•

A suite of information security and data protection documentation was put in place with the
Jisc Group, prior to the integration of the Data Analytics team and services into the Jisc Group,
in September 2019.

•

All staff have been enrolled on Information Security Training and good progress continues to
be made with regard to awareness raising.

•

HESA and HESA Services updated their ISO27001 information security management system
certification to ISO27001:2013 in December 2019; this certification is valid until February 2021
and the last audit was carried out by BSi in December 2019. HESA have also renewed its
Cyber Essentials Plus certification.

A further Information Security Audit took place at the end of the 2019 calendar year, at the time of
writing the report had not yet been received and an update will be provided in the next annual report.
During 2019/20 a range of ongoing development is planned in respect of Privacy Impact
Assessments; Information Asset Management; awareness training; phishing testing; continuously
updating firewalls and configuration management to review and refresh security controls.
CHANGES TO THE HIGHER EDUCATION LANDSCAPE WHICH MAY HAVE AN ADVERSE
IMPACT ON HESA
While the Higher Education Research Act (HERA) applied to England, and HESA operates
underneath as the Designated Data Body, HESA operates UK wide and our close working with the
Devolved Administrations in terms of defining and delivery our services has and will continue.
As noted in previous annual reports the Bell Review recommended greater collaboration between
sector bodies where relevant, or where it made sense to do so. During the course of the year HESA
has worked with Jisc to explore opportunities for closer collaboration between the two sector
agencies, and as a result of this as outlined earlier in this report the Data Analytics team and services
transferred to the Jisc Group in September 2019. The Jisc Group will operate in some elements of
HESA’s work as its processor and in others, around development of new services, as a controller.
Arrangements for managing this data relationship have been put in place and are working well.
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DELIVERY OF STRATEGICALLY IMPORTANT PROJECTS SUCH AS DATA FUTURES AND
GRADUATE OUTCOMES
DATA FUTURES
Data Futures is a critically important project for the UK higher education sector and is a key strategic
project for HESA. It will result in the transformation of the data collection and processing
infrastructure and the provision of timely, high-quality data for all stakeholders.
During the year HESA announced it was undertaking a further design phase. Alongside this design
phase, and following consultation with key stakeholders, HESA decided to deliver the next phase
of the programme using an alternative delivery approach. These decisions have resulted in an
impairment review of the Data Futures Asset.
GRADUATE OUTCOMES
The first year of the Graduate Outcomes survey, which replaced the Destination of Leavers of Higher
Education (DLHE) collection, was successfully delivered with the final cohort concluding at the end
of November 2019 and the first data on track to be published in early 2020. As a result of continuous
improvements to the service, response rates show a trend of increase over the collection, with
769,000 graduates surveyed and 361,000 graduates providing responses. HESA will end the year
with an overall collection response rate of 46.9% and a ‘home’ response rate of 51.6%.
Whilst this is below our overall target response rate of 60% in its first year, we regard the survey
results as positive (particularly given the service has been delivered in a post GDPR environment)
and the resulting data to be of high quality.
The survey remains on track to achieve the aims outlined in the major review undertaken in 2017 by
HESA on the NewDHLE, which led to the implementation of the Graduate Outcomes survey. In
respect of the need to build trust and confidence in the quality of the data and to future proof it to
reflect both changes in the labour market and the diversity of higher education provision, a range of
work has been taken forward in 2019/20 to support this.
We have worked hard during the year to tackle a number of issues regarding response rates, and
through our changes and focus on continuous improvement, we have maximised the use of
technology to boost responses. As part of this, in September 2019 Graduate Outcomes was named
‘judges’ choice’ in the 2019 Confirmit AIR (Achievement in Insight and Innovation) awards in the
Project and Innovation category. These awards recognise top leaders in market research, and it
demonstrates our innovative use of the Confirmit system for the online service and CATI console.
HESA has arranged with the OSR (Office for Statistics Regulation) for a formal assessment of the
statistical bulletin, which will be published in April, to be undertaken during the summer of 2020.
Success in this assessment would result in the bulletin being re-designated as a National Statistics
product from the 2021 edition onwards.
Graduate Outcomes will also be used as the basis for an updated UK Performance Indicator to
replace the previous indicator based on DLHE. It is anticipated that the new indicator will be
published in late April 2020, but this will depend on the establishment of a replacement governance
group for the UK Performance Indicators, and the views of the new group on the definition of the
indicator.
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The data will be made available to the academic research community (alongside other HESA data)
through the Office for National Statistics (ONS) Secure Research Service (SRS). Discussions are
currently underway to establish a regular delivery for data deposit with the SRS alongside the legal
and procedural framework to support research data requests.
Subjective wellbeing data will not be published nor made otherwise available at the level of individual
HE Providers. HE Providers will be able to view results for their own graduates but in a form that will
prevent identification of individuals. The precise form of this is still under development.
Further details of the data supply for the linked data are available through the linked data model
(www.hesa.ac.uk/innovation/records/reviews/newdlhe/model/linked-data/detailed).
INAPPROPRIATE STRUCTURES, STAFF LEVELS AND SKILLS TO IMPLEMENT STRATEGY
In 2018 – 2019 HESA continued to refine structures and invest in new roles where appropriate,
without the impact of large-scale change involved in the Organisational re-design of the previous
year. Managers throughout the organisation were supported through a leadership development
programme, and technical skills were invested in for HESA’s Technology Group. HESA also trialed
using grant funding to a local Further Education college to provide free soft skills training to
employees.
Project activity and resource planning is overseen by HESA’s Portfolio and Performance Board–
which reports issues and risks to the Executive Management Group and thus provides mitigation to
the risk of HESA over-committing its available staffing resources.
During 2018-2019 HESA prepared for the divestment of its Data Analytics team to Jisc. This
transaction, including the transfer of associated employees, was successfully completed at the
beginning of 2019-2020.
Impact:
Average headcount during 2018-2019 increased from 129 to 140 in order to support Data Futures,
Graduate Outcomes and open data. The subsequent divestment of Data Analytics has reduced
headcount to 129 in January 2020.
The investment in managers and new roles has been critical this year: Whilst HESA employees have
faced uncertainty over Data Futures and the Jisc integration they have effectively delivered all
collection activity, taken on the UK’s largest annual social survey and continued to improve the
breadth and accessibility of HESA’s open data.
ENSURING HESA CONTINUES TO BE FINANCIALLY SUSTAINABLE
In the previous two annual reports it was noted that the charity planned to operate a deficit budget
for the first part of its current five-year plan, in order to release resources for internal investment and
to support the Data Futures programme. HESA is currently four years into this plan and excluding
the pension liability now required to be provided for, HESA’s general reserves at 31 July 2019 are
broadly in line with the level required under the Reserves Policy. The budget and subscription model
for the following 12 months forecasts this reserves level returning to a more sustainable level.
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Ultimately, as Designated Data Body HESA is able to charge a subscription level required to meet
its expenditure on Statutory activities. HESA has previously put in place a number of measures to
address the risk of needing to increase subscriptions above inflation. These included: divesting its
income generating arm to Jisc which became effective during the financial year 2019/20; reviewing
its current funding and subscription model to reflect requirements of designation (which included a
thorough review of the costs of current activities); phasing income and expenditure more efficiently;
fluid reprofiling of in-year resources and forecast statements; implementing a new financial system
with enhanced reporting capability; and implementing tighter internal cost monitoring and control
processes and activity tracking.
In 2018/19 HESA communicated to the sector about the development of the new subscription model.
As provided for in the subscription agreements, future subscription invoices will be issued in six
monthly intervals beginning in January 2020. This better facilitates making any adjustments required
to meet the requirements of HERA.
PLANS FOR THE FUTURE
Since developing our Corporate Strategy 2016-21 against which progress has been reported in this
Annual Report and Accounts, HESA has changed substantially.
The Higher Education and Research Act 2017 came into force in England and HESA became the
Designated Data Body for higher education information in England, accountable to the Office for
Students at the end of 2018/19. Responding to the demands of this new role has required the most
significant changes to the organisation since its inception 25 years ago. We have made changes to
our governance structure, organisational design and financial model and this work is ongoing. While
HERA only applies to England, HESA operates UK wide and works closely with the Devolved
Administrations. HERA has required HESA to review on a UK wide basis how it charges for all of its
services.
The focus of HESA’s strategy for the next three years 2019-22 is on delivery of the work we currently
have underway, including delivering key sector-wide projects and ensuring we are set up effectively
to do so. We divested our Data Analytics Team into the Jisc Group early in 2019/20 to further enable
us to focus our resources on our statutory obligations.
The number and diversity of higher education providers continues to grow in the UK, and we
anticipate the number of institutions subscribing to HESA could increase significantly from its current
level. Ensuring we have the systems and services in place to respond to increasing, diverse
subscribers, will be a major priority, necessitating changes in approach across several areas.
We are also aware that higher education providers are facing an uncertain financial future. While
demand for UK higher education remains strong, and its overall standing very high, there are
financial clouds on the horizon. Higher education providers, like many organisations in the public
sphere, are under pressure to deliver more with the same, or even less funding. The imperatives to
keep costs down, while ensuring that as much resource as possible goes towards supporting the
core activities of teaching and research remains high. HESA remains alive to these challenges and
will reflect them in our own operational priorities over the next 3 years.
We work in a period in which technology is evolving more rapidly than ever, and we want to make
sure that we capitalise on the opportunities for service transformation and efficiency that these
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developments afford. Significant opportunities lie in the increased demand for data more generally,
and the possibilities for transforming our core services of data collection, processing and
dissemination are opened up by emerging technology.
At the same time, since HESA’s current strategy was drafted GDPR has come into effect. There is
also increased political and societal awareness of how personal data in particular can be used and
occasionally misused. There is therefore, rightly, increased scrutiny and concern over how HESA
data will be protected and used. Ensuring that we respond effectively to such concerns will be at the
heart of all our activities and our future strategy. Balancing openness with security is an ongoing
issue and we will seek over the course of the next three years (and beyond) to make sure that privacy
is protected, while utility of our data is increased.
Our 2019-2022 Mission, Vision and Objectives are:
Mission
To support the advancement of UK higher education by collecting, analysing, and disseminating
accurate and comprehensive statistical information in response to the needs of all those with an
interest in its characteristics and a stake in its future.
Vision
To operate as an independent, expert data collection, assurance, and dissemination agency,
delivering reliable services for our customers and stakeholders. We do this to enhance the
competitive strength of UK HE through providing a trusted source of information supporting better
decision making and promoting public trust in HE.
Strategic Objectives
1.

Deliver our statutory and non-statutory data collection activities

2.

Deliver our major transformation programmes

3.

Ensure our data and expertise are open and accessible

4.

Build a flexible innovative and resilient organisation

Progress against these will be reported on in our next Annual Report and Accounts.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
The group reported a net deficit for the year of £2,786,598 (2018 surplus: £1,718,091). The deficit is
largely as a result of the expenditure incurred on the Data Futures programme which has been
partially funded from HESA’s general reserves, alongside the loss made by HESA Services Ltd.
Total incoming resources were £13,076,267 for the year compared with £9,743,309 in the previous
period. Restricted income in the current year was £2,457,642 (2018: £2,065,210), being specific
grant funding from a number of sources. The funding contributed towards the costs of Data Futures
and the set up costs of integrating EFEC institutions into the Graduate Outcomes collection.
Unrestricted Funds income increased by £2,940,526 to £10,618,625 in the year. The increase was
driven as we continued to recognise the initial subscription used to fund the set up and operating
costs of the first year of the Graduate Outcomes collection.
During the year HESA received £2,188,319 in grant income (£1,687,677 from OfS, £225,000 from
SFC, £75,641 from HEFCW and £200,000 from Jisc) in relation to the Data Futures Programme.
These values relate to cash receipts rather than the income recognised in the Statement of Financial
Activities and in Note 3.
Income from the Agency’s trading subsidiary, HESA Services Limited, has decreased to £1,053,491
(2018: £1,578,960). The reduction was in line with expectations due to the absence of student
destination data, and the transfer of the training services previously offered by HESA Services
Limited to HESA. As such, the income attributable to training services is now included in the
Charitable activity income. Income from consultancy requests experienced growth in the year.
Total expenditure of the Agency was £15,862,865 (2018: £8,025,218) and of this £5,642,740 was in
respect of Data Futures after including the effects of the impairment exercise undertaken in the year.
Excluding the exceptional year of expenditure for Data Futures, the underlying expenditure for the
Agency was, as expected, higher than in the previous year as we reflect the new costs associated
with delivering year one of the Graduate Outcomes collection.
An impairment review was conducted during the year which resulted in a reduction of £2,180,184 to
HESA’s intangible Data Futures asset.
HESA Services Limited reported a loss of £121,498 for the year, compared with a profit of £157,064
in 2018; the profitability of HESA services reduced as expected as we continued to absorb additional
costs of regulation alongside a commitment to offer good value to the sector.
HESA’s property lease requires HESA on termination to reinstate the premises to their original layout
and condition; if required to do so by the landlord. A review of this provision required was undertaken
by an external consultant which resulted in an increase of £14,000 being required. The total cost,
including fees, is now estimated at £262,000 and this has been provided for in full. Shortly after the
financial year ended HESA renegotiated the terms of its property leases and has entered into new
10 year agreements.
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FUNDRAISING
HESA has not engaged in any fundraising activities requiring disclosure under S162A of the Charities
Act 2011. HESA’s income is primarily subscriptions from its subscribers, grant income for sector
approved projects and monies gift aided from its wholly owned subsidiary HESA Services Limited.
INVESTMENT
The Agency’s cash flow pattern has been that most of its subscription income is received in the early
months of the financial year. This then funds future regular revenue and capital expenditure
requirements. Where operationally appropriate, the Agency will seek to maximise return on cash
deposits by placing fixed term and money market deposits at the most favourable rate, whilst
maintaining optimum working capital levels. Investment income in the year increased to £19,642
(2018: £4,559). HESA’s new subscription model will alter the cash flow pattern seen in previous
years, moving to subscription income being received at two points in the year.
RESERVES POLICY
The Trustees have considered what may be an appropriate level of reserves for the Agency to be
holding. The following have been taken into account when doing so:
•

the need to ensure that we can support operational commitments in the forthcoming year as
set out in the Report of the Trustees,

•

the need to have flexibility to respond to unexpected variations in income and expenditure and
opportunities as they arise,

•

the ability to deliver the longer-term strategic aims as set out in the Corporate Strategy 20162021,

•

the need to establish the Agency in alternative accommodation on the termination of its existing
lease,

•

the nature of the Agency’s income streams is such that the period around the year end is
usually when reserves are at their lowest.

An amount of £650,000 (2018: £650,000) has been set aside in a Designated Accommodation Fund,
being the estimate of sourcing, securing and the initial occupation costs of alternative office
accommodation at the end of the current lease in 2025. The Trustees review the level of this fund
annually to ensure that it is adequate but not excessive. The Trustees receive financial reports at
each meeting and review and approve a three-year financial plan and one-year operational budget
annually. These are updated to take account of actual events during the year and the potential impact
of significant financial events on reserves is considered by the Trustees. During the year the financial
year the USS pension liability increased from £596,142 to £1,558,565. As a result of the loss made
in the year ended 31 July 2019, the level of unrestricted funds has reduced from £3,911,225 in 2018
to £1,124,627 in 2019. As is common practice the Trustees in considering the level of free reserves
exclude this pension liability. On this basis the unrestricted funds excluding this pension liability and
the designated accommodation fund is therefore £2,033,192 and it is considered by the Trustees
that this level of free reserves is sufficient for the Charity.
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PENSION PROVISION
The net change in the provision for HESA’s cost of the deficit recovery arrangements put in place by
the SAUL and USS pension schemes in line with the FRS 102 requirements was an increase of
£962,423 during the year ended 31 July 2019.
TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Trustees (who are also directors of HESA for the purposes of company law) are responsible for
preparing the Trustees’ Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards).
Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under
company law the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and the group and of
the incoming resources and application of resources, including the income and expenditure, of the
charitable group for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required
to:
•

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

•

observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP;

•

make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

•

state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

•

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees, who are also directors of HESA for the purposes of company law, are responsible for
keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the charitable
company’s transactions, disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and the provisions of the charity’s constitution. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the charity and the group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
Insofar as each of the Trustees of the charity at the date of approval of this report are aware, there
is no relevant audit information (information needed by the company’s auditor in connection with
preparing the audit report) of which the charity’s auditor is unaware. Each Trustee has taken all the
steps that he/she should have taken as a Trustee in order to be make himself/herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the charity's auditor is aware of that information.
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We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK)
require us to report to you where:
•

the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

•

the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the group’s or the charitable company’s
ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least
twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue

AUDITOR
Crowe U.K LLP has indicated its willingness to be reappointed as statutory auditor. A resolution to
re-appoint Crowe UK LLP as auditor has been proposed to the Members and approved in December
2019.
The Report of the Trustees incorporating the Strategic Report and other information is approved and
signed by Order of the Board.

Professor Sir Chris Husbands
Chair
Date:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HIGHER EDUCATION STATISTICS AGENCY
LIMITED
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Higher Education Statistics Agency Limited for the year ended 31
July 2019 which comprise the Group Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities incorporating income and
expenditure account, the Group Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Charity Balance Sheet, the Group
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
In our opinion the financial statements:
•

give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and the charitable company's affairs as at 31 July 2019
and of the group's incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure
for the year then ended;

•

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

•

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:
•

the Trustee's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
not appropriate; or

•

the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the group's or the charitable company's ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The Trustee is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the Annual report, other than the financial statements and our Auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HIGHER EDUCATION STATISTICS AGENCY
LIMITED
required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
•

the information given in the Trustees' Report, which includes the Director's Report and the Strategic
Report prepared for the purposes of company law, for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

•

the Strategic Report and the Director's Report included within the Trustees' Report have been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report.
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
•

the parent company has not kept adequate and sufficient accounting records, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

•

the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

•

certain disclosures of Trustee's remuneration specified by law are not made; or

•

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Trustees
As explained more fully in the Trustees' responsibilities statement set out on pages 35-36, the Trustees (who are
also the Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the group's or the charitable
company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the group or the parent
charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditor's report.
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable
company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditor's report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the charitable company and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

This report has not yet been signed

Guy Biggin (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of
Crowe U.K. LLP
Statutory Auditor
Carrick House
Lypiatt Road
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL50 2QJ
Date:
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES INCORPORATING INCOME AND
EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2019

Note

Restricted Unrestricted
funds
funds
2019
2019
£
£

Total
funds
2019
£

Total
funds
2018
£

Income from:
Charitable activities
Other trading activities
Investments

2
4

Total income

2,457,642
-

9,545,492
1,053,491
19,642

12,003,134
1,053,491
19,642

8,159,790
1,578,960
4,559

2,457,642

10,618,625

13,076,267

9,743,309

55,000

62,327
15,745,538

62,327
15,800,538

182,114
7,843,104

55,000

15,807,865

15,862,865

8,025,218

(5,189,240)
2,402,642

(2,786,598)
-

1,718,091
-

Expenditure on:
Raising funds
Charitable activities
Total expenditure

6

Net income before transfers
Transfers between Funds

17

2,402,642
(2,402,642)

Net income / (expenditure) before other
recognised gains and losses

-

(2,786,598)

(2,786,598)

1,718,091

Net movement in funds

-

(2,786,598)

(2,786,598)

1,718,091

-

3,911,225

3,911,225

2,193,134

-

1,124,627

1,124,627

3,911,225

Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

The notes on pages 44 to 66 form part of these financial statements.
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Note

2019
£

£

£

2018
£

Fixed assets
Intangible assets

9

621,074

2,707,435

Tangible assets

10

175,793

303,478

796,867

3,010,913

Current assets
Debtors

12

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year

13

1,099,362

802,755

4,255,103

2,823,112

5,354,465

3,625,867

(3,133,870)

(1,766,172)

Net current assets

2,220,595

1,859,695

Total assets less current liabilities

3,017,462

4,870,608

Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year

14

(109,782)

(149,236)

Provisions for Liabilities

16

(1,783,053)

(810,147)

Net assets

1,124,627

3,911,225

1,124,627

3,911,225

1,124,627

3,911,225

Charity Funds
Unrestricted funds

17

Total funds

The deficit for the year of the Charity dealt with in the financial statements was £2,665,100 (2018: £1,561,027
surplus).
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustee on
signed on their behalf, by:

Professor Sir Chris Husbands
Chair

and

Mr Paul Clark
Chief Executive

The notes on pages 44 to 66 form part of these financial statements.
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Note

2019
£

£

£

2018
£

Fixed assets
Intangible assets

9

621,074

2,707,435

Tangible assets

10

175,793

303,478

1

1

796,868

3,010,914

Investments

Current assets
Debtors

12

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year

13

2,108,841

1,075,416

3,318,484

2,450,182

5,427,325

3,525,598

(3,085,233)

(1,665,904)

Net current assets

2,342,092

1,859,694

Total assets less current liabilities

3,138,960

4,870,608

Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year

14

(109,782)

(149,236)

Provisions for Liabilities

16

(1,783,053)

(810,147)

1,246,125

3,911,225

Unrestricted funds

1,246,125

3,911,225

Total funds

1,246,125

3,911,225

Net assets
Charity Funds

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustees on
signed on their behalf, by:

Professor Sir Chris Husbands
Chair

and

Mr Paul Clark
Chief Executive

The notes on pages 44 to 66 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2019

Note

2019
£

2018
£

1,681,661

1,740,146

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities

19

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest from investments
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Purchase of intangible fixed assets

19,642
(6,556)
(262,756)

4,559
(93,697)
(2,242,007)

Net cash used in investing activities

(249,670)

(2,331,145)

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year

1,431,991

Cash and cash equivalents brought forward

2,823,112

3,414,111

4,255,103

2,823,112

Cash and cash equivalents carried forward

20

(590,999)

The notes on pages 44 to 66 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2019
1.

Accounting policies
Higher Education Statistics Agency Limited (HESA) is a charitable company limited by guarantee. HESA
is registered with the Charity Commission England and Wales (registered no: 1039709). The charity was
incorporated as a company limited by guarantee with Companies House England and Wales (registered
no: 02766993). Its registered and principal office is 95 Promenade, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL50
1HZ.
1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention in
accordance with Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2015) - (Charities SORP
(FRS 102)), the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102), the Companies Act 2006 and the Charities Act 2011.
Higher Education Statistics Agency Limited meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS
102. Assets and liabilities are initially recognised at historical cost or transaction value unless
otherwise stated in the relevant accounting policy.
The Agency has also taken advantage of the exemption available to a qualifying entity in FRS 102
from the requirement to present a Charity only Statement of cash flows.
1.2 Going concern
The charitable company has cash resources and has no requirement for external funding. The
directors have a reasonable expectation that the Agency has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and consider that there were no material
uncertainties over the charitable company's financial viability. They continue to believe the going
concern basis of accounting appropriate in preparing the annual financial statements.
1.3 Income
Income is recognised when the Agency has entitlement to the funds, any performance conditions
attached to the income have been met, it is probable that the income will be received and the
amount can be measured reliably.
Subscription income is accounted for in the year to which it applies. Subscription income received
during the year that relates to a subsequent financial accounting period is carried forward as a
creditor in the balance sheet.
Income from contracts and other services rendered are accounted for on an accruals basis and
included to the extent of the completion of the contract or service concerned. Any payments
received in advance are recognised on the balance sheet as deferred income within liabilities.
Incoming resources from grants, whether ‘capital’ grants or ‘revenue’ grants are recognised when
the agency has entitlement to the funds, any performance conditions attached to the grants have
been met, it is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably
and is not deferred.
Investment income is accounted for when receivable.
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Accounting policies (continued)
1.4 Expenditure
All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been listed under headings that
aggregate all the costs related to the category. Where costs cannot be directly attributed to
particular headings they have been allocated to activities on a basis consistent with use of
resources.
Direct costs, including directly attributable salaries, are allocated on an actual basis. Overheads and
other salaries are allocated between headings on the basis of management estimates of the amount
attributable to that activity, mostly by reference to staff time. Charitable activities comprise all the
expenditure incurred by the Agency in performing its charitable objects.
Support costs are those costs incurred directly in support of expenditure on the objects, and
governance costs are those incurred in connection with organisational administration of the Agency
and compliance with constitutional and statutory requirements.
Costs of raising funds are costs of the trading subsidiary.
All expenditure is inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
1.5 Basis of consolidation
The Statement of financial activities (SOFA) and Balance sheet consolidate the financial statements
of the company and its subsidiary undertaking, HESA Services Limited. The results of the subsidiary
are consolidated on a line by line basis. The registered office of HESA Services Limited is 95
Promenade, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL50 1HZ.
The company has taken advantage of the exemption contained within section 408 of the Companies
Act 2006 not to present its own Income and expenditure account.
1.6 Intangible fixed assets and amortisation
Intangible assets costing £500 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic
benefits are probable and the cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets
are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently measured at cost net of amortisation and any
provision for impairment.
Amortisation is provided on intangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of each
asset, less their estimated residual value, over their expected useful lives on the following bases:

Computer Software

-

3 - 10 years straight line

1.7 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
All assets costing more than £500 are capitalised.
HESA undertakes an annual review of its intangible and tangible fixed assets to ensure that where
the net book value of an asset is greater than its economic benefit it will be deemed to be impaired
and written down to its economic value.
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Accounting policies (continued)

Tangible fixed assets are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.
Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated
residual value, over their expected useful lives on the following bases:
Leasehold improvements
Office furniture
Office equipment
Computer equipment

-

Over the remaining period of the lease
20%
20%
33% 25% 20% 10%

1.8 Investments
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost.
1.9 Leasing and hire purchase
Assets held under finance leases and the related obligations are included at the fair value of the
leased asset at the inception of the lease. Depreciation on leased assets is calculated to write off
this amount on a straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the useful life of the asset.
Rentals payable are apportioned between the finance charge and a reduction of the outstanding
obligation for future amounts payable so that the charge for each accounting period is a constant
percentage of the remaining balance of the capital sum outstanding.
1.10 Operating leases
Operating lease payments are charged to the statement of financial activities on a straight line basis
over the lease term.
1.11 Debtors
Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.
1.12 Cash at Bank and in hand
Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short term highly liquid investments with a short
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar
account.
1.13 Liabilities and provisions
Creditors and provisions are recognised when the agency has a present obligation as a result of a
past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
1.14 Financial instruments
The agency only has financial assets and financial liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic financial
instruments.
Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at transaction value and
subsequently measured at their settlement value.
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Accounting policies (continued)
1.15 Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at rates prevailing at the date of the transaction.
Balances denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
year end.
1.16 Pensions
The split between restricted and unrestricted pension costs for both schemes are based on the
actual staff costs attributed between both streams.
Universities Superannuation Scheme
The Agency participates in Universities Superannuation Scheme. With effect from 1st October 2016,
the scheme changed from a defined benefit only pension scheme to a hybrid pension scheme,
providing defined benefits (for all members), as well as defined contribution benefits. The assets of
the scheme are held in a separate trustee-administered fund. Because of the mutual nature of the
scheme, the assets are not attributed to individual institutions and a scheme-wide contribution rate is
set. The Agency is therefore exposed to actuarial risks associated with other institutions’ employees
and is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme on a
consistent and reasonable basis. As required by Section 28 of FRS 102 “Employee benefits”, the
Agency therefore accounts for the scheme as if it were a wholly defined contribution scheme. As a
result, the amount charged to the income and expenditure account represents the contributions
payable to the scheme. Since the Agency has entered into an agreement (the Recovery Plan) that
determines how each employer within the scheme will fund the over deficit, the Agency recognises a
liability for the contributions payable that arise from the agreement (to the extent that they relate to
the deficit) and therefore an expense is recognised.
Superannuation Arrangements of the University of London
The Agency is a Participating Employer in SAUL. The actuarial valuation applies to SAUL as a whole
and does not identify surpluses or deficits applicable to individual employers. As a whole, the market
value of SAUL’s assets was £1.927 million representing 97% of the liabilities for benefits accrued up
to 31st March 2014.
It is not possible to identify an individual Employer’s share of the underlying assets and liabilities of
SAUL. The Agency’s accounts for its participation in SAUL as if it were a defined contribution
scheme and pension costs are based on the amounts actually paid (i.e. cash amounts) in
accordance with paragraphs 28.11 of FRS 102.
The Trustee and Employers agreed that the Technical Provisions deficit at the 31 March 2014
valuation would be addressed by employer contributions of 3% of salaries between 1 April 2016 and
31 March 2018 (inclusive). The defined benefit liability has been fully paid during 2017/18 and
therefore no liability exists at the year end.
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Accounting policies (continued)
1.17 Fund accounting
General funds are unrestricted funds which are available for use at the discretion of the Trustees in
furtherance of the general objectives of the Agency and which have not been designated for other
purposes.
Designated funds comprise unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the Trustees for
particular purposes. The aim and use of each designated fund is set out in the notes to the financial
statements.
Restricted funds are to be used for specified purposes laid down by the donor. Expenditure for
those purposes is charged to the fund, together with a fair allocation of overheads and support
costs. The aim and use of each restricted fund is set out in the notes to the financial statements.
1.18 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:
The agency makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
Useful economic lives of intangible and tangible assets
The annual amortisation and depreciation charge for the intangible and tangible assets are sensitive
to changes in the estimated useful economic lives and residual values of the assets. The useful
economic lives and residual values are re-assessed annually. They are amended when necessary to
reflect current estimates, based on the technological advancement, future investments, ecomonic
utilisation and the physical condition of the assets. See note 10 for the carrying amount of the
tangible assets and Note 9 for the carrying amount of intangible assets and the above accounting
policy for the useful lives for each class of assets.
Pension Schemes
FRS 102 makes the distinction between a Group Plan and a multi-employer scheme. A Group Plan
consists of a collection of entities under common control, typically a sponsoring employer. A multiemployer scheme is a scheme for entities not under common control and represents (typically) an
industry-wide scheme such as that provided by SAUL and USS. The accounting for a multi-employer
scheme, where the employer has entered into an agreement with the scheme that determines how
the employer will fund a deficit, results in the recognition of a liability for the contributions payable
that arise from the agreement (to the extent that they relate to the deficit) and the resulting expense
is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities. The Directors are satisfied that the scheme
provided by SAUL and USS meets the definition of a multi-employer scheme and has therefore
recognised the disounted fair value of the contractual contributions under the funding plan in
existence at the date of approving the financial statements.
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Accounting policies (continued)
1.19 Termination benefits
Termination benefits are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure to settle the obligation at
the reporting date.

2.

Income from charitable activities
Restricted Unrestricted
funds
funds
2019
2019
£
£
Provision of statistical service
Data Futures
Graduate Outcomes

Total 2018

3.

Total
funds
2019
£

Total
funds
2018
£

2,402,642
55,000

9,545,492
-

9,545,492
2,402,642
55,000

6,094,580
1,966,069
99,141

2,457,642

9,545,492

12,003,134

8,159,790

2,065,210

6,094,580

8,159,790

Analysis of income from charitable activities by type of income
Restricted Unrestricted
funds
funds
2019
2019
£
£
Subscriptions receivable from UK Higher
Education Providers and sector bodies
Higher Education Funding Council for
England
Department of Education
General Medical Council
Health Education England
Other HE Sector contracts in connection
with supply of National Pupil Database data
UK Research & Innovation
National Records of Scotland
European Public Sector Award - DfE
Grants receivable
Other income

Total 2018

Total
funds
2019
£

Total
funds
2018
£

8,994,560

8,994,560

5,711,967

55,000
-

89,919
13,674
56,750

55,000
89,919
13,674
56,750

79,225
87,300
13,674
40,500

2,402,642
-

430
8,240
1,685
26,779
353,455

430
8,240
1,685
2,429,421
353,455

7,173
18,925
11,140
2,660
2,091,128
96,098

2,457,642

9,545,492

12,003,134

8,159,790

2,065,210

6,094,580

8,159,790

-
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Grants receivable from

4.

2019
£

2018
£

Office for Students
Higher Education Funding Council for England
Higher Education Funding Council for Scotland
Higher Education Funding Council for Wales
Jisc
DfE Northern Ireland
Other

1,902,001
225,000
75,641
200,000
26,779

314,969
1,129,199
207,120
62,463
349,458
2,000
25,919

Total

2,429,421

2,091,128

Investment income
Restricted Unrestricted
funds
funds
2019
2019
£
£

5.

Total
funds
2019
£

Total
funds
2018
£
4,559

Bank interest

-

19,642

19,642

Total 2018

-

4,559

4,559

Support costs
Provision of
statistical
service Data Futures
£
£
Other staff costs
Accommodation
Travel expenses
Meetings
Office costs
Technology and
communications
Finance
Projects
Insurance
Subscriptions
Legal and professional
External consultancy costs
VAT recoverable

Total 2018

366,323
426,084
83,565
42,899
86,375
903,903
10,812
36,498
9,686
409,215
(53,033)

-

Graduate
Outcomes
£
-

Total
2019
£

Total
2018
£

366,323
426,084
83,565
42,899
86,375

215,756
469,927
52,856
17,409
31,774
558,733
12,508
58,578
9,496
6,743
101,712
436,172
(30,010)

5,437,326
-

55,000
-

903,903
10,812
36,498
9,686
409,215
5,492,326
(53,033)

2,322,327

5,437,326

55,000

7,814,653

1,505,482

60,093

376,079

1,941,654

1,941,654
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Support costs (continued)

Analysis of governance costs
These are included in the provision of statistical services.

6.

2019
£

2018
£

Legal and professional
External audit fees
Internal audit fees
Costs of Trustees meetings

390,542
13,570
5,103
7,971

88,312
13,300
6,206

Total

417,186

107,818

Analysis of Expenditure by expenditure type
Staff costs Depreciation
2019
2019
£
£

Other costs
2019
£

Total
2019
£

Total
2018
£

Expenditure on fundraising
trading

-

-

62,327

62,327

182,114

Costs of raising funds

-

-

62,327

62,327

182,114

Provision of statistical
service
Data Futures
Graduate Outcomes

7,682,725
-

303,160
-

2,322,327
5,437,326
55,000

10,308,212
5,437,326
55,000

7,406,932
60,093
376,079

Charitable activities

7,682,725

303,160

7,814,653

15,800,538

7,843,104

7,682,725

303,160

7,876,980

15,862,865

8,025,218

5,572,972

350,591

2,101,655

8,025,218

Total 2018
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7.

Net income/(expenditure)
This is stated after charging:

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:
- owned by the charitable group
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets
Impairment of intangible fixed assets
Auditor's remuneration - audit
Auditor's remuneration - preparation of the financial statements
Operating lease rentals
Finance lease interest
Loss / on disposal of fixed assets
Pension contributions

2019
£

2018
£

134,217
168,943
2,180,184
10,600
2,970
245,433
207
24
863,062

196,460
154,131
10,400
2,900
233,591
386
29,153
789,411

The emoluments of the Chief Executive Mr Paul Clark were £129,600 (2018: £121,793) with Employer’s
Pension contribution into the USS scheme of £23,976 (2018: £21,923). Payments to a Trustee are
authorised in the Company’s Memorandum of Association and approved by the Charity Commission and
is paid under a contract of employment.
During the year 10 Trustees received reimbursement of expenses amounting to £3,736 (2018 - 7
Trustees £1,337). These expenses related to travel and hotel accommodation.
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8.

Staff costs
Staff costs were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs

2019
£

2018
£

5,320,876
536,364
1,825,485

4,610,111
344,322
618,539

7,682,725

5,572,972

The total amount relating to termination payments during the year included in wages and salaries was £nil
(2018: £72,338). These amounts relate to agreements made with employees to end employment
contracts. The amount outstanding at the year end was £nil.
The total average number of persons employed by the Agency during the year was 140 (2018: 129).

The number of higher paid employees was:

In the band £60,001 - £70,000
In the band £70,001 - £80,000
In the band £80,001 - £90,000
In the band £90,001 - £100,000
In the band £100,001 - £110,000
In the band £110,001 - £120,000
In the band £120,001 - £130,000
In the band £140,001 - £150,000

2019
No.

2018
No.

5
1
0
1
0
2
1
0

3
1
1
0
1
1
1
1

The aggregate remuneration of key management personnel (including Chief Executive) for the year totalled
£965,256 (2018: £839,407). The remainder of the Executive Management Group for the year consisted of
Company Secretary & Director of Corporate Affairs, General Counsel & Director of Compliance, Chief
Technology Officer, Director of Data & Innovation, Chief Operating Officer, MD HESA Statutory Services & MD
HESA Enterprise.
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9.

Intangible fixed assets

Group and Company

Computer
Computer
Computer
Software
software 3yr software 5yr
10yr
amortisation amortisation amortisation
£
£
£

Total
£

Cost
At 1 August 2018
Additions
Disposals

204,586
(15,889)

728,327
262,756
-

2,199,844
(2,180,184)

3,132,757
262,756
(2,196,073)

At 31 July 2019

188,697

991,083

19,660

At 1 August 2018
Charge for the year
On disposals

172,119
16,243
(15,899)

242,203
150,732
-

11,000
1,968
-

425,322
168,943
(15,899)

At 31 July 2019

172,463

392,935

12,968

578,366

At 31 July 2019

16,234

598,148

6,692

621,074

At 31 July 2018

32,467

486,124

2,188,844

2,707,435

Short-term
leasehold
improvements
£

Office
equipment
and
furniture
£

Office
technology
£

Total
£

At 1 August 2018
Additions
Disposals

602,166
-

236,559
-

1,003,918
6,556
(1,424)

1,842,643
6,556
(1,424)

At 31 July 2019

602,166

236,559

1,009,050

1,847,775

At 1 August 2018
Charge for the year
On disposals

490,567
22,277
-

198,214
18,074
-

850,384
93,866
(1,400)

1,539,165
134,217
(1,400)

At 31 July 2019

512,844

216,288

942,850

1,671,982

At 31 July 2019

89,322

20,271

66,200

175,793

At 31 July 2018

111,599

38,345

153,534

303,478

1,199,440

Amortisation

Carrying amount

10.

Tangible fixed assets

Group and Company
Cost

Depreciation

Net book value
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10.

Tangible fixed assets (continued)
The net book value of assets held under finance leases or hire purchase contracts, included above, are as
follows:

Group and Company
Office equipment and furniture

2019
£

2018
£

1,205

3,271

Page 55

HIGHER EDUCATION STATISTICS AGENCY LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2019
11.

Pensions
(i)

UNIVERSITIES SUPERANNUATION SCHEME

The Agency participates in one defined benefit pension scheme, the Universities Superannuation Scheme
(USS). The scheme includes contributory multi-employer defined benefit arrangements with assets being
held in separate trustee-administered funds and are subject to formal valuations every three years by
actuaries using the projected unit method.
Due to insufficient information being available to enable the Agency to use defined benefit accounting for
these schemes, in accordance with the provisions of FRS 102 the scheme is accounted for as if it were a
defined contribution scheme. However, in addition to the current benefit contributions being paid, the
scheme has put in place agreements for additional contributions to fund their past service deficit. In
accordance with the provisions of FRS 102 the Agency has recognised a liability for the future
contributions that it estimates will be payable as a result of these deficit funding agreements.
At the end of the financial year the liability under the deficit funding agreement was valued. The valuations
are based on the amounts that the charity estimates will be paid discounted to reflect the time value of
money. The discount rate selected reflects the opportunity cost of the investment income forgone. The
rates selected by the Agency reflect the return that would be available from a high quality (low risk)
corporate bond and this is compared to similar organisations to check it is reasonable. The rate for
2018/19 deficit valuation was 2.4% (2018 – 3.2%).
The pension charge for the year in the Statement of Financial Activities includes £1,375,370 (2018 £221,264) in relation to the USS. This represents normal contributions of £412,947 (2018 - £376,774)
payable to the USS together with the cost of the increase in the deficit funding liability between the
opening and closing balance sheet dates of £962,423 (2018 - £77,755 decrease).
Following changes to the USS, this scheme now comprises two parts, USS Retirement Income Builder
which is a defined benefit arrangement and USS Investment Builder which is a defined contribution
arrangement. The latest formal actuarial valuation of the USS defined benefit liabilities has been carried
out as at 31 March 2017 to meet the requirements of the Pensions Act 2004 and was published in January
2019. This actuarial valuation shows a shortfall of £7.5bn in the USS with the scheme assets being
sufficient to cover 89% of its ‘technical provisions’ liabilities.
Based on this valuation the actuary has determined that USS funding rates will increase from the current
total of 26% of salaries (employer 18%, employee 8%) to 35.6% of salaries (employer 24.2%, employee
11.4%) in stages up to 1 April 2020. These contribution rates include:
•
•
•
•

provisions for the employer cost of future accruals of DB benefits,
contributions of 5% towards the correction of the DB past service deficit,
contributions of 0.4% to cover certain administrative expenses and PPF levies, and
the employer contributions towards DC benefits.

The past service deficit contributions are expected to correct the deficit by 30 June 2034 if experience is
borne out in line with the assumptions made for the recovery plan. To reflect the liability for these
contributions the Agency has used a financial modeller to calculate the provision it needs to recognise in
the financial statements. The calculated amount is recognised in the balance sheet and any changes in
the value of the deficit liability each year are shown on the Statement of Financial Activities. For the year
ended 31 July 2019 the Agency provision for the USS liability was £1,558,565 (2018 – £596,142).
There has been much discussion and debate over the valuation of the USS and the increases in the
funding rates. Although the final contribution rates required of members and employers under the 2017
valuation have now been confirmed, the USS trustee has agreed that some of the fundamental issues
raised in a report from the Joint Expert Panel (such as market risks, investment strategies and
contribution levels) can be revisited.
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To do this a new valuation as at 31 March 2018 is being prepared with an accompanying full consultation
on the assumptions underpinning the scheme's Technical Provisions. In line with the guidance from the
Pensions Regulator, these should be set according to the sponsoring employers' risk tolerance. The
Agency recognises that this valuation may result in amendments to the USS funding rates which may
impact on both the future funding costs for the Agency and its liability for the past deficit funding.
Further details on, and a copy of, the 2017 Actuarial Valuation of the USS can be found on the USS
website:
https://www.uss.co.uk/how-uss-is-run/valuation/2017-valuation-updates/the-2017-valuation-has-beenfinalised .
The key financial assumptions used in the 2017 valuation are described below. More detail is set out in the
Statement of Funding Principles.
Pension increases (CPI)

Term dependent rates in line with the difference between the
Fixed Interest and Index Linked yield curves, less 1.3% p.a.

Discount rate (forward rates)

Years 1-10: CPI – 0.53% reducing linearly to CPI – 1.32%
Years 11-20: CPI + 2.56% reducing linearly to CPI + 1.7%
by year 21 Years 21 +: CPI + 1.7%

The main demographic assumption used relates to the mortality assumptions. These assumptions are
based on analysis of the scheme’s experience carried out as part of the 2017 actuarial valuation. The
mortality assumptions used in these figures are as follows:

Mortality base table

Future improvements to mortality

2017 valuation
Pre-retirement:
71% of AMC00 (duration 0) for males and 112% of
AFC00 (duration 0) for females
Post retirement:
96.5% of SAPS S1NMA “light” for males and 101.3% of
RFV00 for females
CMI_2016 with a smoothing parameter of 8.5 and a long
term improvement rate of 1.8% pa for males and 1.6% pa
for females

The current life expectancies on retirement at age 65 are:
2019

2018

Males currently aged 65 (years)

24.6

24.5

Females currently aged 65 (years)

26.1

26.0

Males currently aged 45 (years)

26.6

26.5

Females currently aged 45 (years)

27.9

27.8

A new deficit recovery plan was put in place as part of the 2017 valuation, which requires payment of 5%
of salaries over the period 1 April 2020 to 30 June 2034. The 2019 pension liability provision reflects this
plan. The provision figures have been produced using the following assumptions as at 31 March 2018 and
2019.
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Discount rate
Pensionable salary growth
Pension increases (CPI)

2019

2018

2.44%

2.64%

n/a

n/a

2.11%

2.02%

ii) SUPERANNUATION OF THE UNIVERSITY OF LONDON
The HESA participates in the Superannuation Arrangements of the University of London (“SAUL”), which is a
centralised defined benefit scheme within the United Kingdom and was contracted out of the Second State
Pension (prior to April 2016).
SAUL is an independently-managed pension scheme for the non-academic staff of over 50 colleges and
institutions with links to higher education.
Pension benefits accrued within SAUL currently build up on a Career Average Revalued Earnings (“CARE”)
basis.
HESA is not expected to be liable to SAUL for any other current participating employer’s obligations under the
Rules of SAUL, but in the event of an insolvency of any participating employer within SAUL, an amount of any
pension shortfall (which cannot otherwise be recovered) in respect of that employer, may be spread across the
remaining participating employers and reflected in the next actuarial valuation.

Funding Policy
SAUL’s statutory funding objective is to have sufficient and appropriate assets to meet the costs incurred by the
Trustee in paying SAUL’s benefits as they fall due (the “Technical Provisions”). The Trustee adopts assumptions
which, taken as a whole, are intended to be sufficiently prudent for pensions and benefits already in payment to
continue to be paid and for the commitments which arise from Members’ accrued pension rights to be met.
The Technical Provisions assumptions include appropriate margins to allow for the possibility of events turning
out worse than expected. However, the funding method and assumptions do not completely remove the risk that
the Technical Provisions could be insufficient to provide benefits in the future.
A formal actuarial valuation of SAUL is carried out every three years by a professionally qualified and
independent actuary. The last actuarial valuation was carried out with an effective date of 31 March 2017.
Informal reviews of SAUL’s position, reflecting changes in market conditions, cash flow information and new
accrual of benefits, are carried out between formal valuations.
The funding principles were agreed by the Trustee and employers in June 2018 and are due to be reviewed at
SAUL’s next formal valuation in 2020.
At the 31 March 2017 valuation SAUL was fully funded on its Technical Provisions basis so no deficit
contributions were required. The Trustee and the Employers have agreed that the ongoing Employers’
contributions will continue at a rate of 16% of CARE Salaries.
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12.

Debtors
Group

Trade debtors
Amounts owed by group undertakings
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

13.

Company

2019
£
210,406
345
888,611

2018
£
278,927
64,457
459,371

2019
£
99,402
1,141,353
345
867,741

2018
£
69,553
501,804
64,457
439,602

1,099,362

802,755

2,108,841

1,075,416

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
Group

Net obligations under finance leases
and hire purchase contracts
Trade creditors
Other taxation and social security
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income
Deferred capital grant

Company

2019
£

2018
£

2019
£

2018
£

917
102,611
60,668
60,821
2,892,824
16,029

2,348
284,447
51,747
57,711
1,338,432
31,487

917
101,031
23,848
60,200
2,883,208
16,029

2,348
275,425
57,711
1,298,933
31,487

3,133,870

1,766,172

3,085,233

1,665,904

Group

Company

2019
£

2018
£

2019
£

2018
£

Deferred income at 1 August 2018
Resources deferred during the year
Amounts released from previous years

306,512
1,827,984
(306,512)

538,533
2,822,937
(3,054,958)

271,478
1,827,984
(271,478)

479,444
2,358,616
(2,566,582)

Deferred income at 31 July 2019

1,827,984

Deferred income

306,512

1,827,984

271,478

Income has been deferred as it relates to activities and services which will be delivered in future
accounting periods, and therefore the Agency is not entitled to the funds at the year end.
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14.

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Group

Net obligations under finance leases
Lease rent incentive
Deferred capital grant

Company

2019
£

2018
£

2019
£

2018
£

104,984
4,798

909
127,500
20,827

104,984
4,798

909
127,500
20,827

109,782

149,236

109,782

149,236

Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts, included above, are payable as follows:

Group

Between one and five years

15.

Company

2019
£

2018
£

2019
£

2018
£

-

909

-

909

Financial instruments of the Group

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

2019
£

2018
£

4,912,808

3,166,496

(1,334,173)

(1,354,822)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise cash, trade and other debtors and accrued
income.
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other creditors, pension contributions
due, obligations under finance leases and accruals.
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16.

Provisions
Reinstatement
of 95
promenade
£

Pension
provision
£

Total
£

At 1 August 2018
Increase in the year

248,000
14,000

562,147
958,906

810,147
972,906

At 31 July 2019

262,000

1,521,053

1,783,053

Group and Company

Reinstatement of 95 promenade
Under the Leases the Agency is required on termination to reinstate the premises to their original layout
and condition; if required to do so by the landlord. The estimated cost of this, including fees, is £262,000
and this has been provided for in full. The Leases are secure tenancies both of which terminate in 2025
with options to break in 2021 (subject to providing the landlord with 9 months’ notice).

Pension provision
Under FRS 102 the Agency is required to estimate its own liability to make good its share of the deficit in
both pension schemes. Assumptions have been made that the USS deficit will be recovered by 2031.

The movement in the pension provision in the year is shown below:

At 1 August 2018
Charged to the Statement of Financial Activities: Deficit
contributions payable in the year
Change in expected contributions
Unwinding of discount

2019
£

2018
£

596,142

673,897

(31,250)
977,935
15,738

(84,776)
(9,357)
16,378

1,558,565

596,142

2019
£

2018
£

Pension provision due within one year
Pension provision due in more than one year

37,512
1,521,053

33,995
562,147

Total

1,558,565

596,142

At 31 July 2019
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17.

Statement of funds

Statement of funds - current year
Balance at
1 August
2018
£

Income Expenditure
£
£

Transfers
in/out
£

Balance at
31 July
2019
£

Designated funds
Data Futures
Designated accommodation fund

1,970,383
650,000

-

(1,970,383)
-

-

650,000

2,620,383

-

(1,970,383)

-

650,000

General funds
General fund
Pension liability

Total unrestricted funds

1,886,984
(596,142)

10,618,625
-

(12,875,059)
(962,423)

2,402,642
-

2,033,192
(1,558,565)

1,290,842

10,618,625

(13,837,482)

2,402,642

474,627

3,911,225

10,618,625

(15,807,865)

2,402,642

1,124,627

-

2,402,642
55,000

(55,000)

(2,402,642)
-

-

-

2,457,642

(55,000)

(2,402,642)

-

13,076,267

(15,862,865)

Restricted funds
Data Futures
Graduate Outcomes

Total of funds

3,911,225

-

1,124,627

An amount of £650,000 has been put aside in a Designated Accommodation Fund in recognition of the
future need of the agency to re-establish itself in alternative office accommodation at the termination of its
lease for the existing office accomodation. This estimate is reviewed annually.
Following HESA’s decision to deliver the next phase of the Data Futures programme using an alternative
delivery approach an impairment review was carried out during the year.
The Graduate Outcomes restricted income relates to grant funding received from IFF to fund the
Cognitive Testing of the questions for the Graduate Outcomes project.
The transfer of restricted funds relates to the fulfilment of the restricted Data Futures capital project.
The balance not externally funded for the Data Futures and Graduate Outcomes projects has been
transferred from the general fund, recognising the Agency's contribution to these projects.
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17.

Statement of funds (continued)

Statement of funds - prior year
Balance at
1 August
2017
£

Income
£

Expenditure
£

Transfers
Balance at
in/out 31 July 2018
£
£

Designated funds
Data Futures
Designated accommodation fund

650,000

-

-

1,970,383
-

1,970,383
650,000

Total designated funds

650,000

-

-

1,970,383

2,620,383

General funds
General fund
Pension liability

Total unrestricted funds

2,217,031
(673,897)

7,678,099
-

(7,666,801)
77,755

(341,345)
-

1,886,984
(596,142)

1,543,134

7,678,099

(7,589,046)

(341,345)

1,290,842

2,193,134

7,678,099

(7,589,046)

-

1,966,069
99,141

(60,093)
(376,079)

(1,905,976)
276,938

-

-

2,065,210

(436,172)

(1,629,038)

-

9,743,309

(8,025,218)

1,629,038

3,911,225

Restricted funds
Data Futures
Graduate Outcomes

Total of funds

18.

2,193,134

-

3,911,225

Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year
Restricted Unrestricted
funds
funds
2019
2019
£
£
Intangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Current assets
Creditors due within one year
Creditors due in more than one year
Provisions for liabilities and charges

Total
funds
2019
£

-

621,074
175,793
5,354,465
(3,133,870)
(109,782)
(1,783,053)

621,074
175,793
5,354,465
(3,133,870)
(109,782)
(1,783,053)

-

1,124,627

1,124,627
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18.

Analysis of net assets between funds (continued)

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year
Restricted
funds
2018
£
Intangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Current assets
Creditors due within one year
Creditors due in more than one year
Provisions for liabilities and charges

19.

Unrestricted
funds
2018
£

Total
funds
2018
£

-

2,707,435
303,478
3,625,867
(1,766,172)
(149,236)
(810,147)

2,707,435
303,478
3,625,867
(1,766,172)
(149,236)
(810,147)

-

3,911,225

3,911,225

Reconciliation of net movement in funds to net cash flow from operating activities
Group

Net (expenditure)/income for the year (as per Statement of Financial
Activities)

20.

2019
£

2018
£

(2,786,598)

1,718,091

Adjustment for:
Depreciation charges
Interest from investments
Loss on the sale of fixed assets
(Increase) in debtors
Increase/(decrease) in creditors
Amortisation
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
Impairment of intangible assets

134,217
(19,642)
24
(296,607)
1,324,727
168,943
976,423
2,180,174

Net cash provided by operating activities

1,681,661

196,460
(4,559)
29,153
(221,458)
(59,111)
124,978
(43,408)
1,740,146

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
Group
2019
£

2018
£

Cash in hand

4,255,103

2,823,112

Total

4,255,103

2,823,112
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21.

Operating lease commitments
At 31 July 2019 the total of the group’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases was:

Group and Company

2019
£

2018
£

198,725
794,900
132,483

198,725
794,900
331,208

1,126,108

1,324,833

Amounts payable:
Within 1 year
Between 1 and 5 years
After more than 5 years
Total

22.

Related party transactions
As stated in Note 23 the Agency has a connected trading subsidiary, HESA Services Limited. The address
of HESA Services Limited's registered office and principal place of business is 95 Promenade,
Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL50 1HZ. In 2019 the following transactions took place between the
Agency and its wholly owned subsidiary HESA Services Limited:
Allocation of staff time and overheads calculated mainly on a full time equivalent basis or based on
income and charged as a management charge of £1,112,662 (2018: £1,239,782).
The transfer under gift aid of the trading profits of HESA Services Limited to the Agency of £nil (2018:
£157,064).
The total amount owed by HESA Services Limited to HESA at 31 July 2019 was £1,141,353 (2018:
£501,804).
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23.

Post balance sheet events
In September 2019, 22 staff were transferred from HESA to Jisc to form a new data analytics function
alongside existing Jisc data experts. These staff had been engaged in work previously reported within
HESA Services Limited financial statements.

24.

Principal subsidiary
HESA Services Limited

25.

Subsidiary name

HESA Services Limited

Company registration number

03109219

Basis of control

Ownership

Equity shareholding %

100%

Total assets as at 31 July 2019

£ 1,068,857

Total liabilities as at 31 July 2019

£ (1,190,354)

Total equity as at 31 July 2019

£ (121,497)

Turnover for the year ended 31 July 2019

£ 1,053,491

Expenditure for the year ended 31 July 2019

£ 1,174,989

Loss for the year ended 31 July 2019

£ (121,498)

Prior year Statement of Financial Activities
Restricted Unrestricted
funds
funds
2018
2018
£
£

Total
funds
2018
£

Income from:
Charitable activities
Other trading activities
Investments

2,065,210
-

6,094,580
1,578,960
4,559

8,159,790
1,578,960
4,559

Total income

2,065,210

7,678,099

9,743,309

436,172
436,172

182,114
7,406,932
7,589,046

182,114
7,843,104
8,025,218

89,053
1,629,038

1,718,091
-

-

1,718,091

1,718,091

-

2,193,134

2,193,134

-

3,911,225

3,911,225

Expenditure on:
Raising funds
Charitable activities
Total expenditure

Net income before transfers
Transfers between funds

Net movement in funds
Total funds brought forward
Total funds carried forward

1,629,038
(1,629,038)
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